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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

THRIBRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Xian Yuen
Titanium Resources Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to
present herewith the annual report of the Company and the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recorded revenue
from its continuing operations of approximately HK$10.3 million
(2008: HK$12.8 million) and net loss from its continuing operations
was approximately HK$441 million (2008: HK$319 million). The loss
before income tax of the Group from its continuing operations was
substantially increased by approximately HK$122 million as compared
to last year which included the impairment of goodwill of HK$368
million and impairment of other receivable of HK$31 million. Moreover,
the discontinued operations recorded gain of HK$8.3 million (2008:
loss of HK$30 million). The details are set out in the note 11 to the
financial statements.

CARPET TRADING

Turnover of the carpet trading operation decreased by 19.6%, or HK$
2.5 million, to HK$10.3 million in 2009, which was attributable to
the global economic downturn and intense market competition and
incurred a loss HK$1.6 million in carpets trading business. The Group
will take more effort to source more orders from both new and existing
customers to improve the results.

EXPLORATION AND MINING BUSINESS

Regarding the Xiao Hong Shan project, the Group is still in the process
of preparing for the application for the mining license of the mineral
resources of the titanium mine. The Group is currently preparing the
feasibility report and the integrated utilisation plan, and the application
for the approval of the delineation of the mining zone. Upon receipt
of the approval of the delineation of the mining plan, and subject to
review of the status reports and other relevant information on the
titanium mine to be provided by Qinghai Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited with reference to the expected amount
of return on investment and economic benefit of the project, the
Company will consider whether the application of the mining license
of the mineral resources in the titanium mine should be. It is expected
that certain amount of work will still need to be completed before the
mining license will be issued.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

THARRE

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS

Proposed acquisitions of new businesses

(i)

Oil and gas business

On 25 September 2009, Cheerful Dragon Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional
agreement with Greater Finance Limited (“Greater Finance"),
pursuant to which Cheerful Dragon Limited has agreed to
purchase and Greater Finance has agreed to sell the entire
issued share capital of China International Energy Investments
(Hong Kong) Limited (“China International Energy”) at an
aggregate consideration of HK$1,500 million (subject to the
adjustment). The principal asset in China International Energy
and its subsidiaries is its participating interest in Target Oil Field
pursuant to the Cooperation Contract with China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC"”). The details of the proposed
acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 22 October 2009. As at the date of this annual report,
the proposed acquisition is still not yet completed and the
Company is still finalising the information to be included in the
circular.

The Company takes initiative in identifying investment
opportunities that will broaden its revenue sources. The
acquisition represents a good opportunity for the Company
to diversify its business into the Petroleum Businesses in
cooperation with CNPC, one of the leading state-owned
petroleum enterprise in the People’s Republic of China (the
“"PRC"”). With the anticipated continued growth of the PRC
economy which will fuel the demand for oil as basis of the
acquisition cost, the Board believes that the oil business under
the proposed acquisition is beneficial to the Group’s profile.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

THRBRE

(i)

Electricity and heat business

On 5 November 2009, Precious New Limited, a wholly
owned subsidary of the Company, entered into a conditional
agreement with Maycrown Capital Limited (“Maycrown
Capital”), pursuant to which Precious New Limited has agreed
to purchase and Maycrown Capital has agreed to sell the entire
issued share capital of Sunlight Rise Limited (“Sunlight Rise")
at an aggregate consideration of HK$350.86 million (subject to
the adjustment) and assume the obligation to contribute to and
pay up the remaining balance of the registered capital of Shanxi
Zhong Kai Group Lingshi Heat & Power Company Limited ( 1
AHhYEEELREAGMRAA) (“Shanxi Zhong Kai”) in the
sum of approximately RMB69.55 million. The principal asset in
Sunlight Rise and its subsidiaries is owned 60% equity interest
in Shanxi Zhong Kai. The details of the proposed acquisition are
set out in the Company's announcement dated 23 November
2009. As at the date of this annual report, the proposed
acquisition is still not yet completed and the Company is still
finalising the information to be included in the circular.

The Company intends to expand its existing business to
generating and supplying electricity and heat by using coke
oven gas in the PRC, which, the Directors believed has ample
growth opportunities due to the increased demand for
electricity caused by the continued growth of the PRC economy.
The use of coke oven gas to create electricity and heat can not
only help to reduce this hazardous gas, but it also benefits the
environment. In addition, coke oven gas is of lower cost when
compared with other fuel such as natural gas or heavy oil. The
Board considered that the acquisition represents an opportunity
for the Group to enter into the power generation industry, and
believed that the Group could broaden its source of income by
vertically diversifying into such industry.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

THARRE

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS

The year of 2010 will still be a year with great challenges. However,
the Board believes that whenever there is a crisis, there is an
opportunity. In the future, the Group will strive to combat the adverse
impact arising from the financial crisis, and will adjust its business
strategies to meet the changes of economic environment. It will also
seek to capture any favorable opportunities for prudent investment in
order to ensure a continuous, stable and healthy growth, and generate
greater value for the shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would take this opportunity to express my
sincere thanks to all Shareholders for their continuing support, and all
the Directors and staffs of the Group for their loyalty, commitment and
diligence in the past year.

By order of the Board

Law Fei Shing
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 14 May 2010
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Group's turnover for the year ended 31 December 2009 was
approximately HK$10.3 million. The administrative expenses for
the year ended 31 December 2009 were approximately HK$25
million, which represented a decrease of 37.3% compared to the
administrative expenses incurred last year.

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2009 was increased to approximately HK$432 million, as
compared to HK$341 million in the previous corresponding year. The
loss was mainly resulted from the recognition of (i) non-cash imputed
interest of approximately HK$6.4 million; (ii) impairment loss of other
receivable of approximately HK$31 million and (iii) impairment loss of
goodwill of approximately HK$368 million.

As a significant portion of the Group's sales and purchases were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, the Directors
considered the Group has no significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations in view of the stability of the exchange rates of Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi. During the year under review, the Group
did not use any hedging instrument.

STRENGTHENING THE WORKING CAPITAL
(i) Placement of Shares

A placement agreement dated 6 August 2009 and
supplemental agreement dated 10 August 2009 made between
the Company and Mayfair Securities Limited (“Mayfair
Securities”) as placing agent, pursuant to which an aggregate
of 809,280,000 new ordinary shares were placed by Mayfair
Securities on behalf of the Company, at the price of HK$0.137
per placing share with the independent investors. After the
completion of the placing, the Company issued 809,280,000
new ordinary shares at HK$0.137 per share on 20 August 2009.
Net proceeds from the placing was approximately of HK$108.1
million.

(ii) Open Offer of Shares

A conditional underwriting agreement dated 25 August 2009
entered into between Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingston
Securities”) as the underwriter and the Company, in relation
to the open offer of 2,452,500,000 offer shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.08 per offer share on the basis of
one offer share for every two shares held on 15 September
2009. The subscription was completed on 5 October 2009 and
the net proceeds from the open offer was approximately of
HK$191.9 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR D

DEPOSITS FOR THE PROPOSED ACQUISITIONS

On 25 September 2009, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement with the vendor, Greater Finance Limited (”Greater
Finance”) to acquire the entire equity interests in China International
Energy Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (together with its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as the “China International Group”) for a
consideration of HK$1,500 million (subject to adjustments). The China
International Group is principally investing in oil and gas business. As
at 31 December 2009, a refundable deposit of HK$150 million was
paid to the vendor by the Company. Details of the acquisition of the
China International Group are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated on 22 October 2009.

On 5 November 2009, the Group entered into a conditional agreement
with the vendor, Maycrown Capital Limited (“Maycrown Capital”)
to acquire the entire equity interests in Sunlight Rise Limited (together
with its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Sunlight Group”)
for a consideration of HK$350.86 million. The Sunlight Group is
engaged in the business of generating and supplying electricity and
heat by using coke oven gas in the PRC. As at 31 December 2009, a
refundable deposit of HK$35 million was paid to the vendor by the
Company. Details of the acquisition of the Sunlight Group are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated on 23 November 2009.

CURRENT AND GEARING RATIOS

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$670 million (2008: HK$841 million), total liabilities of HK$42
million (2008: HK$257 million), indicating a gearing ratio 0.06 (2008:
0.31) on the basis of total liabilities over total assets. The current ratio
of the Group for the year was 5.09 (2008: 1.46).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no interest-bearing bank
borrowings and assets pledged (2008: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2008: Nil).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2009, the Group employed approximately 31
full-time employees (2008: 165). The substantial drop in number of
employees is mainly due to the discontinued operations which were
disposed in 2009. The details are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements. The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of individual employees and are reviewed annually in
line with industry practice. The Group also provides provident fund
schemes (as the case may be) to its employees depending on the
location of such employees.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Law Fei Shing, aged 50, was appointed as executive Director
and company secretary of the Company in August 2004 and as chief
executive officer of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Law is a
Practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He is also a
member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA),
USA and associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA). Mr. Law has over 20 years of experience
in the audit and accounting services. He was an executive director and
a company secretary of Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock code:
8046), a company listed on the GEM board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”), for a period from June
2007 to October 2007. Currently, Mr. Law is an executive director and
a company secretary of Bestway International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 718) and an executive director of China Boon Holdings Limited
(stock code: 922). Both companies are listed on the Main board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Sung Wai, aged 62, was appointed as executive Director
of the Company in November 2008. He has extensive experience in
trading, real property and shipping industries. He also has extensive
experience in financial and media business. He was an executive
director of Grand Field Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 115), a
company listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange, for a period
from November 2007 to June 2008. Currently, he is an executive
director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 899) and
Karce International Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1159).
Both companies are listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing, aged 52, was appointed as executive Director
of the Company in July 2009. He has been working in securities
brokerage and funds management professions. Wholly devoted to
petroleum and natural gas upstream development arena since 2006,
Mr. Chan participated in discussions on various petroleum and natural
gas projects in China and internationally, including Africa, central
Asia and America, accumulating rich and extensive experience in
exploration, exploitation and production. He was an executive director
and chief executive officer of China Energy Development Holdings
Limited (stock code: 228), a company listed on the Main board of the
Stock Exchange, for a period from October 2009 to December 2009.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEBEFR

Mr. Wang Donghai, aged 57, was appointed as executive Director
of the Company in September 2009. Mr. Wang has extensive
experience in all oil-related areas, including oil production, exploration,
development and investment economics, investment and financial
management, infrastructure and overall operations of oilfields. He has
been acted as the Head of the Gudong Oil Production Centre (one of
the largest oil production centres of the Shengli Qilfield) since 2000;
He also has been a visiting professor at the Nanjing University since
2001, teaching post-graduate and graduate students on subjects
including oil field exploration and development, oil economics and
state security.

Mr. Zhao Guoqiang, aged 52, was appointed as executive Director
of the Company in December 2009. He has near 30 years of working
experience in exploration and exploitation of Petroleum industry.
Currently, Mr. Zhao is an executive director and chief executive officer
of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 228), a
company listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Zhenming, aged 64, was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Company in July 2009. He has led as the President
of the Energy Commission of the National Development and Reform
Commission in the People’s Republic in China since 2006. Mr. Zhang
also had led as the deputy chairman of China National Petroleum
Corporation Research Institute of Economics and Technology and had
conduct energy research for more than ten years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEBEEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lum Pak Sum, aged 49, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2005. He holds
a master degree in business administration from the University
of Warwick, UK and a LLB (Honor) degree from the University of
Wolverhampton, UK. He is currently a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, UK. Mr. Lum was an independent
non-executive director of Grand Field Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 115) for a period from July 2004 to May 2008, China Star Film
Group Limited (stock code: 8172) for a period from September 2005
to December 2008 and Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock code:
8046) for a period from June 2007 to November 2008. Currently, he
is an independent non-executive director of Waytung Global Group
Limited. (stock code: 21), Bestway International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 718) and Karce International Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 1159). These companies are listed on the Main board of the
Stock Exchange. He is also a chairman of the audit committee and a
member of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Company.

Mr. Sun Tak Keung, aged 45, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director of the Company in April 2007. He is currently a
director of a Hong Kong private limited company which is principally
engaged in marketing and trading of daily consumable goods in Hong
Kong and overseas. Mr. Sun was an executive director of Polyard
Petroleum International Group Limited (stock code: 8011) for a period
from March 2002 to November 2007 and he was an independent
non-executive director of Huscoke Resources Holdings Limited (stock
code: 704) for a period from April 2008 to January 2010 and Yueshou
Environmental Holdings Limited (stock code: 1191) for a period
from July 2007 to October 2008. These companies are listed on the
Main board of the Stock Exchange. He is also a member of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company.

Mr. Chow Pui Fung, aged 69, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2008. He is a
merchant and has been in the business of securities investments,
shipping and import & export for years. He was an independent non-
executive director of Neptune Group Limited (stock code: 70), a
company listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange, for a period
from March 2003 to June 2007. He is also a member of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREREE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance, holding the beliefs of transparency, honesty and
accountability. The Board of directors of the Company considers that
sound corporate management and governance practices are essential
to the Company's healthy growth under all business environments.
Therefore, we continuously review and improve our corporate
governance standards to ensure maximum compliance with the
relevant laws and codes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “"Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Listing Rules”), save for the deviations from Code Provision A.2.1
(chairman and chief executive officer) and Code Provision A.4.1 (tenure
of non-executive directors) of the Code as explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors by Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiries made, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board determines and keeps under review the objectives of the
Group. It makes decisions on overall strategies and actions necessary
for achieving these objectives, monitors and controls financial and
operating performance, formulates appropriate policies, and identifies
and ensures best practices of corporate governance. The Board
members are fully committed to their roles and have acted in good
faith to maximise the Shareholders’ value in the long run, and have
aligned the Group's goals and directions with the prevailing economic
and market conditions. Daily operations and administration are
delegated to the management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREREE

The Board comprises a balanced number of executive Directors
and non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) that can ensure there is adequate independent judgment for
the running of the Company’s business. The members of the Board
comprise experts from various professions with extensive experience.
One of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. In all corporate communications, the Company
had disclosed the composition of the Board according to the categories
and responsibilities of the directors.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
members, including five executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The Board
members during the year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Law Fei Shing (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chan Sung Wai

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing (appointed on 3 July 2009)

Mr. Wang Donghai (appointed on 10 September 2009)
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (appointed on 23 December 2009)

Mr. Fok Po Tin (resigned on 16 April 2009)
Mr. Tam Owen (Chairman, retired on 2 June 2009)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Zhenming (appointed on 17 July 2009)
Mr. Lam Shing Tsun, Edmond (removed on 8 December 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lum Pak Sum

Mr. Sun Tak Keung
Mr. Chow Pui Fung
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CRERBE

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the date
of this annual report are set out in the “Biographical Details of
Directors” section on pages 11 to 13 of this annual report. None of
the Directors has any financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation,
the Company considers that the three independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, 18 full Board meetings
were held and details of attendance is set out as follows:

RAFHRAM ARAREEFEEHBHRAFER
%115%%135 FE?EW%FJ —&fe “% B

Bl %

BRIz EWRRE3 136 ARR 2 REISBILIHE
BITEE—NEEBIBRE - REAHERRSE
NE ARBRB=ZRBUIFNTEETIB LN
ARE BRFAETRAUEINMGAH 2 ES
WAL=

HE-_ZTTZNFT+-_A=T—HIEFE FA7A
ARTNRE2REFTER SESF2HFEXRF
aian R

Number of Board meetings
attended/eligible to
attend Board meetings

HEEEREE
EESEE Y

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Law Fei Shing BBk 5T A 18/18
Mr. Chan Sung Wai PREZE S A4 18/18
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing (Note 1) PREJEE S 4 (MfaET) 12/12
Mr. Wang Donghai (Note 2) FRGEE (H7E2) 0/6
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (Note 3) HE B 98 S A (A at3) 0/0
Mr. Fok Po Tin (Note 4) EBHEE (WWit4) 0/3
Mr. Tam Owen (Note 5) IR (HTaE5) 5/5
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Zhang Zhenming (Note 6) SRR A 58 A (M aE6) 9/10
Mr. Lam Shing Tsun, Edmond (Note 7) WK & E (Hat7) 7/17
Independent Non-Executive Directors VYFHTES
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MAAFR L 18/18
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FEBEE 18/18
Mr. Chow Pui Fung FEEE LA 16/18
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Notes:

Appointed on 3 July 2009
Appointed on 10 September 2009
Appointed on 23 December 2009
Resigned on 16 April 2009
Retired on 2 June 2009
Appointed on 17 July 2009
Removed on 8 December 2009

No vk wNy 2

Every Board member have full and timely access to Board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the company secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required. The company secretary continuously
updates all Directors on the latest development of the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practice.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code A.2.1 of CG Code provides, inter alia, that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

Following the retirement of Mr. Tam Owen at the 2009 annual
general meeting of the Company, Mr. Tam Owen ceased to act as
chairman, executive Director, chairman of remuneration committee
and nomination committee and authorised representative of the
Company with effect from 2 June 2009. The Company is still looking
for a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy of chairman and further
announcement will be made by the Company upon fulfillment of this
requirement under the Listing Rules.

The Board will review the management structure of the Group from
time to time and will adopt appropriate measures as may be desirable
for future development of the operating activities or business of the
Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has deviated from the requirements of Code Provision
A.4.1 of the Code, which stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Some
existing non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company do not have a specific term of appointment.

As the appointment of non-executive Directors are subject to the
retirement by rotation provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Board considers that it is not necessary to appoint the
non-executive Directors for a specific term and it is sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are on terms no less exacting than the required standard set
out in the Code. At every annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not three or in a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. All Directors, including those appointed for a fixed term,
are subject to the retirement by rotation provision in the Articles of
Association of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee, established in compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, comprises the three independent non-executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Company, is responsible for
reviewing and evaluating the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company and making
recommendations to the Board of directors from time to time.

Following the retirement of Mr. Tam Owen at the 2009 annual general
meeting of the Company, the remuneration committee currently
comprises the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company.
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The remuneration committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision B.1.3 of the Code. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee include (but without limitation):

1. To make recommendations to the Directors on our policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such
remuneration.

2. To determine the terms of the specific remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management.

3. To review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Directors from time to time.

¥Z B g RARE T RIZ T RIGXB.1.3EM
L 77 522 5 B 1R 0 ] 1T 4 R 2 B G [ B 3 o i B
ZEECFERABRRE (BETRRY) :
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During the year ended 31 December 2009, the remuneration HEZTZNF+ZA=1T—RLFE FMZ
committee held four meetings to review the remuneration package of BeR{TT P_TI/’X@E% L EEEeRE Rm R
the Board members and the senior management. Composition of the EREZE @N FTNEEGCHEKREESR
remuneration committee and details of members’ attendance to the KB 2 = QD—F-
committee are as follows:
Number of
meetings attended/
eligible to
attend meetings
HE/ GEE
HESBRH
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MAREE 4/4
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FEEEE 4/4
Mr. Chow Pui Fung EEEEE 4/4
Mr. Tam Owen (Note) B EE (M at) 0/0
Note: K
Retired on 2 June 2009. RZZETNFEASAZHEE
RERSKBIEZERERAE ¢ — T NFFR
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee, established in compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, comprises the three independent non-executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Company, is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and management of the Board succession.

Following the retirement of Mr. Tam Owen at the 2009 annual
general meeting of the Company, the nomination committee currently
comprises the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company.

The nomination committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision A.4.5 of the Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the nomination committee
held six meetings. Composition of the nomination committee and
details of members’ attendance to the committee are as follows:

REEES

ARABEREMRAME T O EEERTER
STRHIKIZRZZES KERRBRARR =88
FHTEERAR TEF‘E?%?EE%&E
SERBrETFEENEFRSRUEERES

BREREENARRRA _ZETNFREBFRE
ERER REZEEREHARR =B UIF
MITEREMK -

RAZBECHRAMRETARXA 4 5GP Z 2
ABESEmMRR  BERERX -

BE_ZTAFT-_A=1t—RLFE REZ
BERTTARER REZBECHEKREZE
GREBZHEEFALNT

Number of
meetings attended/
eligible to

attend meetings
HE /&%
HESBERE

Mr. Lum Pak Sum MAEFR L £
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FEERSEA
Mr. Chow Pui Fung AEE x4
Mr. Tam Owen (Note) BEER S (W aE)

Note:

Retired on 2 June 2009.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the suggested terms of reference stated under the Code Provision
C.3 of the Code. The audit committee comprises all three independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lum Pak Sum. The
audit committee is responsible for review of the Group’s accounting
principles, practices internal control procedures and financial reporting
matters including the review of the interim and final results of the
Group prior to recommending to the Board for approval. The major
roles and functions of the Group's audit committee are as follows:

1. To consider the appointment of the external auditors, the
audit fees, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of the
external auditors of the Group.

2. To discuss with the external auditors the nature and scope of
the audit.
3. To review the interim and annual financial statements before

submission to the Board.

4. To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
review and final audit, and any matters the auditors may wish
to discuss.

5. To review the external auditors’ management letters and

management'’s response.

6. To review the Group's internal control systems.

7. To consider the major findings of internal investigations and
management’s response.
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During the year ended 31 December 2009, the audit committee held HEZZZTNFT A=+ —"BLFE BFZZ
two meetings to review the annual and interim results. Composition BERTTMAGH UEHEFERTPEHES-
of the audit committee and details of members’ attendance to the BERLZEREKKREZEGKE 2 RN

committee are as follows: K

Number of
meetings attended/
eligible to
attend meetings
HE/SEHE
HESERRH
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MAEFREE 2/2
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FERLE 212
Mr. Chow Pui Fung bt 272

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, Grant Thornton, Certified Public Accountants, was
appointed as the auditors of the Company and to hold office until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.

The following table sets forth the type of, and fees for, the principal
audit services and non-audit services provided by Grant Thornton to
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009:

RE AT &

FR XSO ESAMIERERAR
ZREE WEEE $AET—EHx$5@¢7K§
SRR

TREINBE_FTTAFT _A=+—HLFE
MO EGAMITRETAEE 2 TEXBRBE L
FRBRB2ERARKE

Services rendered
Fees paid/payable
HK$'000

FriR AR %

e ENEA
FET

Audit services ZH R

480

Non-audit services (i.e. consultancy services) IEZ ERTS (BEE RS 7B A AR TS ) 200

ok

*

Total X
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company endeavors to implement a sound risk management and
internal control system. The Board is responsible for maintaining an
adequate internal control system to safeguard Shareholder investments
and Company’s assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such system
on an annual basis, as well as through the audit committee. The audit
committee reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHT AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for them to demand
a poll on resolutions at Shareholders’ meetings are contained in
the Company’s Articles of Association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures are included in all circulars to
Shareholders prior to 31 December 2009 and will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings. Poll results, if any, will be posted on both
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company no later than 30
minutes before the earlier of the morning session or any pre-opening
session on the next business day of the Shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Our
Directors are available at the Shareholders’ meetings of the Company
to answer questions and provide information which Shareholders may
enquire. The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREREE

Taking advantages of various resources, the Company keeps
communicating with its Shareholders regularly and properly to ensure
that Shareholders are adequately aware of any important issues during
the course of the Company’s operation, and then exercise their rights
as Shareholders with sufficient knowledge. Investors are welcome to
write directly to the Company at its Hong Kong registered office for
any inquiries.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group and for ensuring that financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of financial statements of the Group. The Directors confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, Grant
Thornton, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report
on page 38 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of Xian Yuen Titanium Resources Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the Group include trading of carpets and
exploration of mine.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 41 to 164. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year.
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EXEHEE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008
and 2009, and the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group as at each of the reporting date, prepared on the basis set out

in the notes below.

MBENBRE
TXHEARBRE-SEREF —FEAF =
TRLF CFEN\FER-BEAFTOA=H—

BLEEFEZDTERARENRAEER SR
SRHZEE ABNFERRRRE

REEEHN T X M-

SZHE

RESULTS ES
Year ended 31 December
HE+-HA=+-HLEFE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
—EEhE ZETNF ZETEF ZTTRF ZTTREF
FERL FHT FHL FHT FHTL
(E75) (E5) (&%)
Revenue Wi
- Continuing operations* —REEE B 10,332 12,846 28,851 17,698 32,803
- Discontinued operations** —ERIEREER - 6,418 26,796 8,825 8,179
Operating loss from BECEXBLEEBE
continuing operations (432,608) (296,296) (38,194) (28,390) (34,450)
Finance costs SRR (7,920) (22,521) (3,235) (149) (1,686)
Loss before income tax from T—*fi“”i“‘ E
continuing operations PSRl 18 (440,528) (318,817) (41,429) (28,539) (36,136)
Income tax P - - - - =
Profit/(loss) for the year from REBEKRICEER
discontinued operations wA S (EE) 8,341 (29,665) (37,132) (17,618) (54,994)
Loss for the year AEEER (432,187) | (348,482) (78,561) (46,157) (91,130)
Loss attributable to: FE1h 18 -
Owners of the company ENNGIEZ 2SN (432,187) | (341,321) (79,129) (46,167) (91,136)
Non-controlling interests FE1E IR AR R R 2 = (7,161) 568 10 6
(432,187) (348,482) (78,561) (46,157) (91,130)
@ Continuing operations for the years ended 31 December 2005, 2006, & @iﬁ:” THE T F _TTLF
2007, 2008 and 2009 represent trading of carpets. ENFRZZENFT+ZA=T—HILEFE
Zﬁﬁﬂ“Miﬁ%TSEEﬂﬂh
B Discontinued operations for the years ended 31 December 2005, 2006, s %zK ZERF _TTEF ZTTEF =
2007, 2008 and 2009 represent manufacturing of carpets and trading ENFRZZZENFT+_A=+—HILEFE
of goods. ZE%%EZ“‘%iﬁ%?a%Li’fﬁ%&gtﬁEl':"
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BERFEERREERS
INTERESTS

At 31 December

BW+=A=+-R
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SBBhE | —TTN\E —TTLE  —TEAE —TERHE
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
Non-current assets FERBEE 554,799 747,086 702,176 82,614 83,403
Current assets TEEE 114,775 93,511 168,012 17,903 27,199
Total assets EERE 669,574 840,597 870,188 100,517 110,602
Current liabilities mEEE 22,559 64,123 68,157 36,558 22,050
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 19,279 192,695 177,403 1,158 2,660
Total liabilities BEEE 41,838 256,818 245,560 37,716 24,710
Net assets BEFE 627,736 583,779 624,628 62,801 85,892
Non-controlling interests R AR R A - 1,288 33,581 (217) (227)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME-BERSZE

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the RARRARAEEME BERKERFAZEH
Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the EIEER B mRM 6 -
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Share capital during the year together
with the reasons therefore, are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 33 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the Share
premium account of the Company of approximately HK$1,451 million
as at 31 December 2009, is distributable to the Shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The Share premium account may also be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus Shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 100% of the Group's total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 100%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 100% of the total purchases for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
44%.

None of the Directors of the Company, any of their associates or
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued Share capital), had any
beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers and/or
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Board members during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Law Fei Shing (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chan Sung Wai

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing (appointed on 3 July 2009)

Mr. Wang Donghai (appointed on 10 September 2009)
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (appointed on 23 December 2009)
Mr. Fok Po Tin (resigned on 16 April 2009)

Mr. Tam Owen (Chairman, retired on 2 June 2009)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Zhenming (appointed on 17 July 2009)
Mr. Lam Shing Tsun, Edmond (removed on 8 December 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lum Pak Sum

Mr. Sun Tak Keung
Mr. Chow Pui Fung

TEEFRHER

FAHETASERAATFP ZHEGEAEER
FEAHERN100% ETHETHRATPZH
FEAIMH100% °

AEERAAREHRE ZBEERNEERFE
NABREREAI100%  MEFRAZAREHRELZ
BER RN 4)1544% -

ARRZER EZBZEMBEALRR (&
EEMABEEARRRIDHITRAES%E)  BE
REAEEAREF RSP EETHEEENEE

3

=

FAMBERFHRAY EFTXKEWT:

BITES

RSB E (7T

REBEE

REKEE (R-FEENFLA=HEZE)
IRBEE(R-FENFNA+HEZ(E)
BEBEAE (R-_FENFF_A-Ft=HEZF)
EEARE (R-FFNFHA T NAFE)
BIERAE (FE R-FFENFNHAZHRE)

FHTES

RIRALE (R—FFEANFLA T LHEZE)
MREEE (RZFEANFT-A/NAEEE)

BYFHITES
AR £
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In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Law Fei Shing and Mr. Lum Pak Sum will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Chan Kwok Wing, Mr. Wang Donghai, Mr. Zhao
Guogiang and Mr. Zhang Zhenming who were newly appointed as
Directors of the Company on 3 July 2009, 10 September 2009, 23
December 2009 and 17 July 2009 respectively, shall hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company following
their appointments and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent as defined in the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 11 to 13 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

On 5 November 2007, Mr. Law Fei Shing entered into a service
contract with the Company, under which the Company appointed
Mr. Law Fei Shing and he agreed to act as the chief executive
officer, an executive Director, the company secretary, the authorised
representative and the qualified accountant of the Company for a term
of 3 years.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no Director had
a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.

PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENT

Particulars of the pension scheme arrangements are set out in note 3(t)
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURE

As at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which had been notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required to be entered in the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by the Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December, 2009, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following person other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Interests in
Interest in Shares underlying Shares

RipESE REARD2ES

Name of Shareholder

R R ¢ &

ESBAROHESZ 2EF

RFRERERE - A EERERBSIRR18R
ZFRBERRAEBALRE Z D HESFM
Eam 2N HEITEARERN AARAHHE
T E AR MBI L EML T BEEEATW
BEMEMEABEZ EaER -

FERRRAQRRMDRAEBRD
ZEBERRRA

RZBEAF+_A=+—B BEARRAEFL
ITETHABMA BARBRESZTREZITHA
BNV UTALTRARA R RBERD T HES
ARBIRERESEAERDIE3B6HRATHFZ
BRMPLE I ERIRR

gh
=

Aggregate Approximate
interest percentage* Notes
iR BAOBE S Bt

Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret
REELT -

# Percentage which the aggregate long position in the Shares or
underlying Shares represents to the issued Share capital of the Company
of 7,361,043,307 Shares as at 31 December 2009.
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Notes:

2,212,617,599 underlying Shares consist of shares to be issued upon
the conversion of (i) the outstanding Tranche 1 Bonds (as defined in
the circular of the Company dated 15 October 2007) (which, based
on the conversion price of HK$0.508 per Share (as adjusted), can be
converted into 20,472,441 Shares); (ii) the Tranche 2 Bonds (as defined
in the circular of the Company dated 15 October 2007) (which, based
on the conversion price of HK$0.60 per Share, can be converted into
666,666,667 Shares); (iii) the outstanding Tranche 3 Bonds (as defined
in the circular of the Company dated 6 June 2008) (which, based on the
conversion price of HK$0.212 per Share (as adjusted), can be converted
into 2,358,491 Shares); and (iv) the Tranche 4 Bonds (as defined in
the circular of the Company dated 6 June 2008) (which, based on
the conversion price of HK$0.25 per Share, can be converted into
1,523,120,000 Shares).

The Tranche 2 Bonds and Tranche 4 Bonds have not been issued. Please
refer to the Company’'s circulars dated 15 October 2007 and 6 June
2008 for details of the principal terms of the Tranche 2 Bonds and
Tranche 4 Bonds respectively.

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the ordinary
Shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2009, no short positions

were recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware, no other
person had an interest or short position in the Company’s shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which was recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s Directors,
independent non-executive Directors, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group,
any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group and any minority Shareholder in
the Company'’s subsidiaries. The Scheme was adopted on 6 June 2002
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 9
years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised Share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the Shares of the Company in issue at
any time.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting passed on 8 December
2009, the general scheme limit of the Company’s Share option
scheme has been reset to 736,104,330 Shares, representing 10% of
the Company’s issued Share capital on the date of meeting, with the
passing of ordinary resolution, which allowing the Company to grant
further options carrying the rights to subscribe for a maximum of
736,104,330 Shares. As at the date of this report, no option has been
granted pursuant to the Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares issuable under Share options to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period,
is limited to 1%, of the Shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of Share options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
Shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive Directors,
in addition, any Share options granted to a substantial Shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the Shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s Shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to Shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of Share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the Share
options granted is determinable by the Directors, and commences after
a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of the offer of the Share options or the expiry date
of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the Share options is determinable by the
Directors, but may not be less than the higher of:

(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s Shares on
the date of the offer of the Share options;

(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
Shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of the offer; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at Shareholders’ meetings.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions that are required to be disclosed
for the year are set out in note 40 to the financial statements. Save as
disclosed therein, there were no transactions required to be disclosed
as connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the terms of the above transactions are fair and
reasonable so far as the Shareholders of the Company are concerned,
and that the transactions have been entered into by the Group
in its ordinary and usual course of business and were carried out
in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to date of this report, no Directors are
considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined by the Listing Rules, other than those businesses of
which the Directors have been appointed as Directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 14 to 24 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2009.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRESE

LITIGATION

Details of the litigation of the Group are set out in note 43 to the
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a
review of the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2009. The audit committee comprises the three
independent non-executive Directors of the Company. During the year,
two regular meetings of the audit committee have been held.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 have
been audited by Grant Thornton, Certified Public Accountants, who
retire and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

LAW FEI SHING
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 14 May 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYULHBMEES

° Grant Thornton
= )

To the members of

Xian Yuen Titanium Resources Holdings Limited
AR R B R A A

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xian
Yuen Titanium Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
41 to 164, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYURHBMBES

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYULHBMEES

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building
41 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

14 May 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEESEX

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—sEnF —TENF
B = FHERT FHET
Continuing operations: FEREEK:
Revenue & 5 10,332 12,846
Cost of sales BHE KA (10,020) (10,883)
Gross profit EF 312 1,963
Other income H At WA 5 2,515 10,752
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAL = (734)
Administrative expenses THAX (25,327) (40,397)
Other operating expenses HEEmx (41,707) (14,850)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of & 32 7 2 i (B &5 18
goodwill 19 (368,401) (253,030)
Operating loss REEHE (432,608) (296,296)
Finance costs BT RS B AR 7 (7.920) (22,521)
Loss before income tax MRS HATEER 8 (440,528) (318,817)
Income tax expense A 9 - -
Loss after income tax from BEREEBRBHRE
continuing operations BB (440,528) (318,817)
Discontinued operations: ERIEREER:
Profit/(Loss) for the year from REEER I EER
discontinued operations wmA (EE) 8 and & 11 8,341 (29,665)
Loss for the year KEEEFE (432,187) (348,482)
Loss for the year attributable to: EhARFEREE:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIE7 ZEWN 12 (432,187) (341,321)
Non-controlling interests e - (7,161)
Loss for the year KEEEFE (432,187) (348,482)
Loss per share for loss attributable to FRAAXATEE AELEIE
the owners of the Company during ZERER
the year 113
- Basic =%
From continuing and discontinued FRBICE R RE K
operations KT (HK8.2 centsi&{li) | (HK13.4 cents & 1l)
From continuing operations SRS T (HK8.3 centsi&{ll) | (HK12.4 cents /&1l)
- Diluted —#E
From continuing and discontinued SEREEBREKIEE
operations BT N/ATEA N/A i F3
From continuing operations BB ET N/ATE A N/A 38 F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEEZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—2EaE —EENF
ks FHERT FHET
Loss for the year rFEERFER (432,187) (348,482)
Other comprehensive income Ht2mEBA
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation BREBINEBIBRE 2
of financial statements of foreign N (E18) W=
operations (146) 8,941
Release of exchange reserve upon HEM B A ER 36(a)
disposals of subsidiaries (N i R and & (c) (9,272) -
Release of exchange reserve on deemed %1 H & [ BB 2 7] 8§
disposal of subsidiaries b 5 @ o 37 = (6,848)
Other comprehensive income AEEHM2EBA
for the year (9,418) 2,093
Total comprehensive loss AEEXHEBELAR
for the year (441,605) (346,389)
Total comprehensive loss BiE2HEERERE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RRABHEB A (441,605) (340,955)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR IR R - (5,434)
(441,605) (346,389)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRRE

As at 31 December 2009 R —ZZHE+-A=+—H

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—EEAF —ZZE)N\F
B 5 FHERT FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 16(a) 3,605 4,709
Goodwill Bk 19 327,632 696,033
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHENBEE 20 - 12,091
Deposits for acquisitions of subsidiaries W B ARl 2k E 21 185,000 -
Exploration and evaluation assets MERFHEE 22 38,562 34,253
554,799 747,086
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BRIA 23 - 43
Prepayments, deposits and TERT IR ke kA
other receivables JiE U s AR 24 1,393 30,998
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEGFLRFER: 25 113,382 881
114,775 31,922
Assets in disposal group classified HESESHEARBEFHEZ
as held for sale BE 26 - 61,589
114,775 93,511
Current liabilities REEE
Deposits received, other payables and Bz & - H b FE A 5B K
accruals JE& 5T IR 28 22,559 13,755
Finance lease payables FER R AL 29 - 97
22,559 13,852
Liabilities in disposal group classified HEEBYIBEARFELEZ
as held for sale af& 26 - 50,271
22,559 64,123
Net current assets RBEEREE 92,216 29,388
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBAE 647,015 776,474
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Finance lease payables FERNmEMRLD 29 - 33
Convertible bonds AR E 2 30 19,279 192,662
19,279 192,695
Net assets EERE 627,736 583,779
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to the owners of ZAAFHEEGAEGES
the Company
Share capital LN 32 73,610 30,247
Reserves Ees 33(a) 554,126 552,244
627,736 582,491
Non-controlling interests FE 22 % A% R # - 1,288
Total equity 48R 627,736 583,779
Law Fei Shing Chan Kwok Wing
EEH PR B £
Director Director
o EE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B %R &

As at 31 December 2009 R —ZET HEFE+-A=+—H

2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —ZTT)N\F
B =E FExT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BEREE 16(b) 10 83
Interests in subsidiaries KB R R 2 18 339,340 998,601
Deposits for acquisitions of subsidiaries WEHRB AR ZZ® 21 185,000 -
524,350 998,684
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ERRIE -ZE2 Rk
other receivables H b pE U SRR 24 629 14
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEFERFERS 25 112,631 496
113,260 510
Current liabilities REBEE
Deposits received, other payables and BYR S - B R EIE K
accruals FEET B 28 2,567 7,779
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(AE)FE 110,693 (7,269)
Total assets less current liabilities EELERABERE 635,043 991,415
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR (& 55 30 19,279 192,662
Net assets EEFE 615,764 798,753
EQUITY EE
Share capital N 32 73,610 30,247
Reserves ] 33(b) 542,154 768,506
Total equity g 615,764 798,753
Law Fei Shing Chan Kwok Wing
EEE PR B &
Director Director
- EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERZRDR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZTTNF+_A=+T—RHILFE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

RRAEEARL RS
Convertible
bond Non-
Share Share Capital Exchange equity Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRES FER
Bx RHEE EARE EifE EnfiE 2EFR b RFEER BER
FEL TR Tt TR AR TEr  TEr  TAr  TEn
At 1 January 2008 RZZEN\F-A—A 13,587 560,420 137,610 10,024 147,261 (277,855) 591,047 33,581 624,628
Acquisition of additional interests I B AR 2 BIMER

in a subsidiary (note 35) (Ff535) - - - - - - - (25,928) (25,928)

Disposals of subsidiaries (note 36(h)) &M B A7
(H3£36(h)) - - - - - - - 217 217
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries REELERELR

(note 37) (B537) - - - - - - - (1,148) (1,148)
Issue of convertible bonds BTARRES (FH30)

(note 30) - - - - 103,438 - 103,438 - 103,438
Issue of shares on conversion of R EBABBEFFET

convertible bonds B (B &E32() R (b))

(notes 32(a) and (b)) 16,660 342,628 - - (130,327) - 228,961 - 228,961
Transactions with owners BEBAZRS 16,660 342,628 - - (26,889) - 332,399 (26,859) 305,540
Net loss for the year TEEEREE - - - - - 431 (341,321) (7,161)  (348,482)
Other comprehensive income ~ Hfi2EKA
Exchange gain on translation of ~ BEEHNEBHBRK 2

financial statements of foreign g RlEn

operations - - - 7,214 - - 7,214 1,727 8,941
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries R {EHEHBAF]

(note 37) (Fit5E37) - - - (6,848) - - (6,848) - (6,848)
Total comprehensive loss rEEXEFELE

for the year - - - 366 - (341,321) (340,955) (5,434) (346,389)
At 31 December 2008 R=BENE

+=-A=t+-AH 30,247 903,048 137,610 10,390 120,372 (619,176) 582,491 1,288 583,779
At 1 January 2009 R=ZEAF—F—H 30,247 903,048 137,610 10,390 120,372 (619,176) 582,491 1,288 583,779
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 36(b)) & KB A 7 (F#36(b)) - - - - - - - (1,288) (1,288)
Issue of shares upon placing and ~~ REERAREERET

open offer (notes 32(c)and (d)  B&fA (BiEE32(0K(d)) 32,618 274,454 - - - - 307,072 - 307,072
Issue of shares on conversion of ~ RRATAREFFET

convertible bonds Bt (B &E32() R (b))

(notes 32(a) and (b)) 10,745 273,501 - - (104,468) - 179,778 - 179,778
Transactions with owners HEBAZRS 43,363 547,955 = - (104,468) = 486,850 (1,288) 485,562
Net loss for the year rEEBBTE - - - - - (432,187)  (432,187) - (432,187)
Other comprehensive income ~ Hfi2EKA
Exchange loss on translation of BEBNEBRABREZ

financial statements of foreign ERER

operations - - - (146) - - (146) - (146)
Disposals of subsidiaries HENBAR

(notes 36(a) and () (FiE36()R(C)) - - - (9,272) - - (9,272) - (9,272)
Total comprehensive loss AEEXEFELE

for the year = = = (9,418) - (432,187) (441,605) — (441,605)
At 31 December 2009 RZBENE

ey = = 3| 73,610 1,451,003 137,610 972 15,904 (1,051,363) 627,736 - 627,736
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—2BAE —TENF
B 5 FHERT FHET
Cash flows from operating BEREEBREARLRE
activities of continuing and ARz REXBRERE
discontinued operations
Loss before income tax B P15 %4 Al S 18
Continuing operations RECEEB (440,528) (318,817)
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER 8,341 (29,665)
(432,187) (348,482)
Adjustments for: M TFIIEE (EL %
Depreciation e 8 1,021 3,449
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  FB{ & 3k 78 # 4 8 - 244
Bad debts written off i 88 22 IR 8 - 11,720
Impairment loss of goodwill FEREEE 8 368,401 253,030
Provision for impairment loss of other H bW RIBREEE
receivables B 8 30,965 -
Loss on disposals of property, plant and ~ HE&EWE  HE ME#E
equipment E1a 8 10 2,090
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZWH 5 (9,044) (6,280)
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries LEHRBARZEE 8 10,534 -
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries  R{EHE M B AR ZEIE 8 - 11,027
Assets in disposal group classified as HESESERFELE
held for sale — loss on re-measurement CEE-ENFTEQATF
to fair value less costs to sell BEREEKRNZEE 8 - 15,410
Interest income F B WA 5 (1,787) (3,921)
Interest expenses FERZ 7 7,920 22,521
Operating loss before working capital LELESEHRCKEEE
changes (24,167) (39,192)
Increase in inventories FE 238 - (3.141)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables EWESREBE R,
(#5hn) 43 (1,651)
Increase in prepayments, FENFIE - Ze REAM
deposits and other receivables JE UK SR I8 2 32 N (1,847) (5,132)
Decrease in trade payables ERE SREB 2R = (143)
Increase in deposits received, Bz - E b FENRIA
other payables and accruals K2 FE 5T 3R IE S AN 6,463 12,134
Increase in amounts due to non- JE < JE 2 A% A% 3R SR IR 38 0
controlling shareholders - 2,589
Cash used in operations FARE#E B2 (19,508) (34,536)
Interest paid BEAFE (1,523) (13)
Net cash used in operating activities IEERETH B2 FEE (21,031) (34,549)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
EF + oy —ETNF
B = FHERT FHET
Cash flow from investing activities FEAKEEBRRERLEE
of continuing and discontinued EBeREXBRERE
operations
Purchases of property, plant and BEME WE LEE
equipment 16(a) (32) (1,329)
Purchases of exploration and BEWRETGHEE
evaluation assets 22 (4,465) (6,566)
Payments for the deposits for acquisitions UZBET B A Rl 2 & & 43
of subsidiaries 21 (185,000) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising from HENBARIFMELEZR S
disposals of subsidiaries mAS Gt ) F5E 36(i) 18,664 (563)
Net cash outflow arising from deemed BIEHEWBRRMELZ
disposal of subsidiaries BEmLFE 37 - (9,221)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWME WERKEZM
plant and equipment (CE/ S - 36
Interest received 2 U F & 1,787 3,921
Net cash used in investing activities ARBERE B FE (169,046) (13,722)
Cash flow from financing activities BREKSEERRCRIERE
of continuing and discontinued ¥BCcEETBERERE
operations
Proceeds from issue of shares upon RIRELE FHITRID ZFR15
placement I8 32(c) 110,872 =
Proceeds from issue of shares upon BEARBEEZEITRMNZ
open offer Fr 8 538 32(d) 196,200 =
Repayments of other borrowings EEEMER 26 (5,964) =
Capital element of finance lease MERANRZAEEH D
payments (64) 91)
Net cash generated from/(used in) FE (AR BEZEZ
financing activities B2 FEE 301,044 (91)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRB\ESEEERAZ
cash equivalents ®in CRD) R 110,967 (48,362)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BZzEEE
at 1 January HEEEER 2,387 50,725
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes [EXR&F) s & 28 24
Cash and cash equivalents R+t-A=+—BZEERK
at 31 December HeEEER 113,382 2,387
Analysis of balances of cash and cash B&RBELEEER 2
equivalents D
Cash and bank balances of continuing BHERKEXE2HER
operations RITEEER 25 113,382 881
Cash and bank balances included in STABEHEZREERZ
assets held for sale REeRBITERR 26 - 1,506
113,382 2,387
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 R & M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xian Yuen Titanium Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
and domiciled in the Cayman Islands. Registered office of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is Room 1102B, 11th Floor, Tower
1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. The
Company's shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) include:

- the exploration of mine in the People’'s Republic of
China (the "PRC") (Commercial operations has not yet
been commenced during the year); and

- the trading of carpets representing the trading of
carpets of other renowned brand names.

In 2009, the Group disposed of the following subsidiaries:

- In 2008, the business of carpet manufacturing was
carried out by its disposed subsidiaries, namely Hui Zhou
Orient Carpet Manufacturing Co., Ltd (“HZOCM") and
Tang Shan Win Alliance Wealthy Unit Carpet Limited
(“Tang Shan Win Alliance”) (collectively referred to as
the “Carpet Manufacturing Group”) whilst the business
of goods trading was carried out by the Group’s other
disposed subsidiaries, namely Wise Mount Management
Limited (“Wise Mount”) and Win Alliance Development
Limited (“Win Alliance”) (collectively referred to as
the "Goods Trading Business Group”). As these two
businesses had been suffering persistent losses, on 4
December 2008, the Group entered into two separate
sale and purchase agreements to dispose of the Carpet
Manufacturing Group and the Goods Trading Business
Group. The disposals of the Carpet Manufacturing
Group and the Goods Trading Business Group were
completed in March and February 2009 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZTTNF+_A=+T—RHILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

- Orient Carpet Manufacturing (HK) Limited (“Orient
Carpet”), 626 Limited and Hong Kong Forest Source
Mining Industry Development Company Limited
("HKFSMID"). HKFSMID was an investment holding
company. Orient Carpet and 626 Limited were
principally engaged in the trading of carpets. This
business is now carried out by the Group's subsidiary,
Ho Fai Carpet Trading Limited (“Ho Fai”).

- Beijing Forest Source Mining Industry Development
Company Limited (“BJFSMI”). This Company was
principally engaged in the mineral dressing and trading
of mineral resources and established in Beijing, the PRC
and had net assets of HK$9,332,000.

- The Group also disposed of some subsidiaries which
were either principally engaged in investment holding or
dormant. Two separate sale and purchase agreements
were entered into to dispose of Jackley China Limited
(“Jackley China”) and its subsidiaries on 30 April 2009
and Aurora International Enterprises Limited (“AIEL")
and its subsidiaries on 21 August 2009.

Details of the disposals of the subsidiaries are set out in note 36
to the financial statements.

Other than the disposals as described above, there were no
significant changes in the Group's operations during the year.
The Group's principal places of the business are in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The principal activities and other particulars of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 41 to 164 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued) 1.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
("HK$'000") unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 14 May
2010.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 2.
HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new standards, amendments and interpretations
issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2009:

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial
Statements
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an investment in a
subsidiary, jointly controlled
entity or an associate

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

Various Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2008

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new HKFRSs
had no material impact on how the results and financial
position for the current and prior periods have been prepared
and presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of
financial statements

The adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) makes certain changes
to the format and titles of the primary financial statements and
to the presentation of some items within these statements.
It also gives rise to additional disclosures. The measurement
and recognition of the Group's assets, liabilities, income
and expenses is unchanged. However, some items that were
recognised directly in equity are now recognised in other
comprehensive income, for example exchange difference
on translation of financial statements of foreign operations.
HKAS 1 affects the presentation of owner changes in equity
and introduces a “Statement of comprehensive income”.
Comparatives have been restated to conform with the revised
standard. The Group has applied changes to its accounting
polices on presentation of financial statements and segment
reporting retrospectively. However, the changes to the
comparatives have not affected the consolidated or parent
company statement of financial position at 1 January 2008 and
accordingly this statement is not presented.

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an
investment in a subsidiary, jointly controlled
entity or an associate

The amendment requires the investor to recognise dividends
from a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or an associate
in profit or loss irrespective the distributions are out of the
investee’s pre-acquisition or post-acquisition reserves. In prior
years, the Company recognised dividends out of pre-acquisition
reserves as a recovery of its investment in the subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entities or associates (i.e. a reduction of the
cost of investment). Only dividends out of post-acquisition
reserves were recognised as income in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 2. ERAFITIRLETEBIMER

HKFRSs (continued)

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an
investment in a subsidiary, jointly controlled
entity or an associate (Continued)

Under the new accounting policy, if the dividend distribution
is excessive, the investment would be tested for impairment
according to the Company's accounting policy on impairment
of non-financial assets.

The new accounting policy has been applied prospectively as
required by these amendments to HKAS 27 and therefore no
comparatives have been restated.

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

The adoption of HKFRS 8 has not affected the identified
and reportable operating segments for the Group. However,
reported segment information is now based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker. As the Group’s operating
segments reported to chief operating decision maker as
required by HKFRS 8 are the same as the business segments
reported in accordance with the predecessor standard (HKAS
14 "Segment Reporting”), the adoption of HKFRS 8 has
not resulted in a re-designation of the Group’s reportable
segments.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but
are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group's accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new and amended HKFRSs that are expected
to have impact on the Group’s accounting policies is provided
below. Certain other new and amended HKFRSs have been
issued but are not expected to have a material impact of the
Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 3 Business combinations (Revised
2008)

The standard is applicable in reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009 and will be applied prospectively. The new
standard still requires the use of the purchase method (now
renamed as the acquisition method) but introduces material
changes to the recognition and measurement of consideration
transferred and the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities,
and the measurement of non-controlling interests (previously
known as minority interests) in the acquiree. The new
standard is expected to have a significant effect on business
combinations occurring in reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 R & M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)

HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial
statements (Revised 2008)

The revised standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and introduces changes
to the accounting requirements for the loss of control of
a subsidiary and for changes in the Group’s interest in
subsidiaries. Total comprehensive income must be attributed
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. The directors
do not expect the standard to have a material effect on the
Group's financial statements.

Annual improvements 2009

The HKICPA has issued /mprovements to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards 2009. Most of the amendments become
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010. The Group expects the amendment to HKAS 17 Leases
to be relevant to the Group’s accounting policies. Prior to the
amendment, HKAS 17 generally required a lease of land to
be classified as an operating lease. The amendment requires a
lease of land to be classified as an operating or finance lease
in accordance with the general principles in HKAS 17. The
Group will need to reassess the classification of its unexpired
leases of land at 1 January 2010 on the basis of information
existing at the inception of those leases in accordance with the
transitional provisions for the amendment. The amendment will
apply retrospectively except where the necessary information is
not available. In that situation, the leases will be assessed on
the date when the amendment is adopted. The directors are
currently assessing the possible impact of the amendment on
the Group’s results and financial position in the first year of
application.

54 Xian Yuen Titanium Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2009

2.

BT RIETT BB MR
HEA (@)

ERSHENE27EGEEREY
MEHR (ZEZBNELHERT)

BETEIAN _FZENFLA-BAHER
Fta 2 T EIRAER REBBRENB
NEEGIENAEBNRNE R RERE
GEHRESI AEE - BIEIEIE R AR SR A2
BZEBEREBEMAGR 2ERARLBEDNA
BN IR R s - E TR ER
CEHAKREMEREABEARE

—ERNFZFEERE

BEGMASER-FEENFEBHFK
WEBRZ 20 - KB ERTR=_F—F
F-A-BRERRABZFEHREER-
AEBEHEE G EMENTRAOZE
FTEASE ST HERERM RNIEFTA
BEGENE TR —RERLMELD
BREZHEN EBEETEREMHOR
RBEBGAEAFENTRETN Z —RRAD
BAREIMERN AEERFRRE
WIBERT 2 BB UZSEHOMNE
BEFREZERNREE EFNFHEAEE
RZZ-—FF—-H-HZKRERT AL
ZoBeWEER KB ER MR
BRATEER BB ERNRARERTE A
ETE - EEFREFHILBETHAE
BN ERERFE 2 AR BIRTA RE
EEZTE-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost convention except for the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment which are stated at fair
values. The measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-
group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group's perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the
profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable
to equity interests that are not owned by the Group and
are not the Group's financial liabilities.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Profit or loss attributable to
the non-controlling interests is presented separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the Group’s result. Where losses
applicable to the non-controlling exceed the non-
controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity, the excess
and further losses applicable to the non-controlling are
allocated against the non-controlling interests to the
extent that the non-controlling has a binding obligation
and is able to make an additional investment to cover
the losses. Otherwise, the losses are charged against the
Group's interests. If the subsidiary subsequently reports
profits, such profits are allocated to the non-controlling
interests only after the non-controlling’s share of losses
previously absorbed by the Group has been recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ =TT hF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of
subsidiaries (other than those under common control)
is accounted for by applying the purchase method. This
involves the estimation of fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities
of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless
of whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On
initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their fair values, which are also used
as the bases for subsequent measurement in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company's
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in
equity. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation have been treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into HK$ at the closing rates.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
rendering of services and the use by others of the
Group’s assets yielding interest, and dividends, net
of rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) sale of goods are recognised upon transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the buyers, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold. This is usually taken
as the time when the goods are delivered and
the customer has accepted the goods;

(ii) interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method; and

(iii) sub-leasing rental income are recognised on a
time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities. The cost of the business
combination is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
("CGUs") and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 3(j)).

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Goodwill (continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination
can be determined only provisionally by the end of
the year in which the combination is effected because
either the fair values to be assigned to the identifiable
assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities or the cost of
the combination can be determined only provisionally,
the Group accounts for the combination using
those provisional values. The Group recognises any
adjustments to those provisional values within twelve
months of the acquisition date. The carrying amount of
an identifiable asset, liability or contingent liability that
is recognised of adjusted as a result of completing the
initial accounting is calculated as if its fair value at the
acquisition date had been recognised from that date.
Goodwill shall be adjusted from the acquisition date by
an amount equal to the adjustment to the fair value at
liability
or contingent liability being recognised or adjusted.
Comparative information presented for the periods
before the initial accounting for the combination is
complete is presented as if the initial accounting had
been completed from the acquisition date. This includes

the acquisition date of the identifiable asset,

any additional depreciation, amortisation or other profit
or loss effect recognised as a result of completing the
initial accounting.

Where there is additional acquisition of interests in a
subsidiary by the Group that do not result in gaining
or losing control in that subsidiary, the non-controlling
interest component of equity is adjusted to reflect
the non-controlling’s revised share of the net carrying
value of the subsidiary’s net assets. The difference
between the consideration paid by the Group and the
proportionate increase in the Group's interest in the
carrying values of the subsidiary’s net assets is recorded
as additional goodwill and no fair value adjustment
is made to the carrying values of the subsidiary’s
net assets as recorded in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 R & M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Goodwill (Continued)

When a business combination agreement provides
for an adjustment to the cost of the combination
on future events, the Group includes the amount of
that adjustment in the cost of the combination at the
acquisition date if the adjustment is probable and can
be measured reliably. When a business combination
agreement provides for such an adjustment, that
adjustment is not included in the cost of the
combination at the time of initial accounting for the
combination if it either is not probable or cannot be
measured reliably. If that adjustment subsequently
becomes probable and can be measured reliably, the
additional consideration is treated as an adjustment to
the cost of the combination.

(h) Exploration and evaluation assets

These are stated at cost less impairment loss.
Exploration and evaluation assets include topographical
and geological survey drilling, exploratory drilling,
sampling and trenching and expenditure incurred for
the technical feasibility studies and incurred to secure
further mineralisation in the mine ore. Expenditure
incurred prior to obtaining the exploration and
evaluation rights to explore an area are written off as
expense as incurred. Once the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of extracting the mineral resource
had been determined and that the project reaches
development phase, exploration and evaluation costs
capitalised are amortised. If exploration property is
abandoned during the evaluation stage, the total
expenditure thereon will be written off.

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for
impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that
the carrying amount of exploration and evaluation
assets may exceed its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction
in progress (“CIP") are recognised at revalued amount,
based on their fair value at the date of valuation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the reporting date. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation
is restated proportionately with the change in the
gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying
amount of the asset revaluation equals its revalued
amount.

Any revaluation surplus arising on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is credited to the
“assets revaluation reserve” in equity, unless the
carrying amount of that asset has previously suffered a
revaluation decrease or impairment loss as described in
note 3(j). To the extent that any decrease has previously
been recognised in profit or loss, a revaluation increase
is credited to profit or loss with the remaining part of
the increase dealt with in the assets revaluation reserve.
A decrease in the net carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment arising from revaluation or impairment
testing is charged against the assets revaluation reserve
relating to the asset and any remaining decrease
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the revalued amounts of the property, plant
and equipment to their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings at mining site The shorter of the lease
and buildings terms and 50 years
Plant and machinery 15 years

Leasehold improvements, 4 to 10 years
furniture, office
equipment and motor
vehicles

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, the terms of the relevant lease.

The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation
methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss. Any revaluation surplus
remaining in equity is transferred to accumulated losses
on disposals of the revalued assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the financial period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

()

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

CIP, which mainly represents leasehold improvements on
buildings, is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs
incurred during the periods of construction, installation
and testing. CIP is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment and
depreciation commences when the construction work is
completed and the asset is ready for use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment, prepaid
lease payments, exploration and evaluation assets
and interests in subsidiaries are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the risk specific
to the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generate cash inflow independently (i.e.
a CGU). As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested as CGU level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those CGUs that
are expected to benefit from synergies of the related
business combination and represent the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the
carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment
loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR5

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34
— Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year.

Impairment loss recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Assets acquired under a finance lease

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments of such assets are included in
property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
finance lease payables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAREHHE®A &)
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Leases (Continued) (k) HE (@)

Assets acquired under a finance lease (Continued) REBEHNKBZEE (&)

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance BEREEEGRIFECEERR
lease agreement corresponds to those applied to it HERRA BB E
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding finance EZEgTEEE-HEREHEES
lease liability is reduced by lease payments less finance EHREENFTRREER TR
charges, which are expensed to finance costs. Finance MG AZHE - HENTMBEEZ
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to BMEBERBREERHEGTAER
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to O EEETT MY AEARIURKR
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of BEAR R 2 b R AR © sk A & AR
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for FTELZ SR BIBR RN -

each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Operating lease charges as the lessee HEHYERF (FERBABA)

(1) Leases which do not transfer substantially all the (1) WHEHETSEMERIER
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group o Rk ko REREARE
are classified as operating lease. Where the B BB R A o i
Group has the right to use of assets held under REBGRERREREHE
operating leases, payments made under the HNR/BEZEE ARFER
leases are charged to profit or loss using the MEEE 2 EENmRFEE
straight-line method over the lease terms except AEARRMZ S —EE
where an alternative basis is more representative BRIMBBEHEEEL 2 5%
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived eEABARRBERENE
from the leased assets. Lease incentives received AP - Tz HE 5
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral e ERESNEER
part of the aggregate net lease payments made. RORERTE 2 BB DN
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or mRPER A NE
loss in the accounting period which they are B4z et HRERRS
incurred. HER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR5

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

V)

Leases (Continued)
Operating lease charges as the lessee (Continued)

(2) Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments
to acquire the long term interests in usage of
land. These payments are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the lease
term.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured
and presented according to the nature of the assets.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss using the straight-line
method over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using first-in, first-
out method, and in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling prices in the
ordinary course of business less any applicable selling
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 SR & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial assets (m) BI&EE

Recognition and measurement

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade
date. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred. At each reporting
date, financial assets are reviewed to assess whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the financial
asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

BEASTTBEME &)

MBEE (&)

(m) Financial assets (Continued) (m)

Available-for-sale financial assets

These include non-derivative financial assets that do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising from
a change in the fair value excluding any dividend
and interest income is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
the available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve
in equity, except for impairment losses (see the policy
below) until the financial assets is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in profit or
loss.

For available-for-sale investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
they are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each reporting date subsequent to initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment of
individual financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or more
of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR5

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which
the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, an amount is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not recognised in profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZTTNF+_A=+T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Assets held for sale

Assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. These assets (and disposal
groups), other than financial assets, classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on
assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups are
recognised in profit or loss.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(b) the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAES:tHFEH®E &)
POLICIES (continued)

(0) Accounting for income taxes (Continued) (o) FIBFHzEBstEE (&)
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax REEESERUTERAFEZ
liabilities in net if, and only if, FEERIBEEERRERIBEEF:
(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to (a) ZEBAOEB R NITEA

set off current tax assets against current tax VARS8 BT 7% 8 B B ER A
liabilities; and BEEHHE &

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax (b) RERIAEENMELENIES
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the BEE RSB UATE
same taxation authority on either: P —IEER R PRSI A RS
(i) the same taxable entity; or (i) A —EEHRERS: 3
(ii) different taxable entities which intend (if) TR EDE 8-

either to settle current tax liabilities EEERGEEE
and assets on a net basis, or to realise A KBEIELER B
the assets and settle the liabilities BEFTEFEXE
simultaneously, in each future period in FE R IE A B A AN
which significant amounts of deferred 51 &9 & & K 5 A2
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be RFBEEEE AN
settled or recovered. BaREREHEH

T)‘?ﬁi‘%iﬁ?i&fﬁfﬂ

BEMRRSE

f& e

(p) Cash and cash equivalents (p) RERREEEEE
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and RehBHeFEEB BRERITRF
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term SR RITERAFERRIRE D H
highly liquid investments with original maturities of HR=[AxNATHEALBRAEH
three months or less that are readily convertible into RegHARBEEZPRBRIAZE
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an MEERBREE REFNRERE
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of xmE ReRkRESEEER B
the statement of cash flows presentation, cash and cash EERERABRNASERSER
equivalents include bank overdrafts which are repayable BN 2 RITES

on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(r)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued. Any transaction costs associated with the
issue of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include other payables
and accruals, finance lease payables and convertible
bonds.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3(f)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Other payables and accruals
These are recognised initially at their fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability and an equity
component.

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability and equity components are
classified separately into respective liability and equity
components on initial recognition. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds
of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the
call option for conversion of the bonds into equity, is
included in equity as convertible bond equity reserve.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component will remain in equity until conversion
or redemption of the bonds.

When the bonds are converted, the convertible bond
equity reserve and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred to
share capital and share premium as the consideration
for the shares issued. If the bonds are redeemed, the
convertible bond equity reserve is released directly to
accumulated losses.

Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value less
the capital element of lease repayments (see note 3(k)).

3.

EXGHERERBE @)

(r)

RFKRERBERAT « —F

=R E P

BERZEHIZTRKRESF

AERBAERELBRARA Z TR
REFH MR RREE T T 2R’
1/‘%51 B % & % A WA 2 REE
""""" CAMERRAKEEBERERS
62% AERMIAAR-

RRARBETZRRESBSIMB
BEMERED DR ERERE
BUNBEARBEREZID -RE
RERE  BESH» 2 AFEDE

BUGERR R EB ZRITHIHH X
BEE - BITHBESR ZAEHA
HERER 2 A TEZER
BIRRAI L RES AR BB
BERE St ARRIESATREES
R

BESSERRAERNZ R Z#E
AT B o #E 2R BR 0 7 AR KR
Bl & 75 Al 3R B Rz A

ﬁﬁ%%)ﬂﬁﬁ AR E S ES
BREERD AREER LR
ABAREBEOEE (FREETR
2 RE-HEZFEED AR
BErEafFENERERERFE

Be

BEHNEE

BEMO B ERTBEREEER
ZEAREAFE (RME3K))

TILEFiHl

79



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR5

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

According to the relevant regulations in the PRC, the
subsidiaries of the Group operating in the PRC are
required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments,
whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of the basic salaries of their
employees to the scheme to fund their retirement
benefits. The scheme is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or other post-retirement benefits
beyond the employer contributions. Contributions under
the scheme are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules and regulations in
the PRC.

3.

BEASTBEME &)

(t)

BERBARAREHES
wF &)

EFEHRN G E

BB HIERTE ST EEN - K&
BB ERREERLERMERE
BB S RIKREFGE ([87E
ZFtE]) - HADNREEEAFT S
ZADHFHE ARREREDR
Bl REBERHETE B BRER
BroRTERFt B2 EENBYLER
HEWARE BAKEZEED
e REERLRBEEFEXTZE
THAREMFEEME -

REBTEMEBERE  NEERTE
REZHBRARAS LA BRI
MRAEEZHREAKSEE &
bt FEREARASEREERER
TEZETADLEERRE
TERIRIRBHI AR Z 308 - B BT
AR ERRNEE XA R
EZBEE BKEEHFN AEH
RERRRESFRIEMENRREE
MR EEE Z B AE - RIEBEE B
SEH 2 HRTIRER B BEE
KRB MEN B ERSRAMER -

RFKREZBRBRAT « —TTAFFH 81



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they are accrued to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees
and directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).

For other goods or services received by the Group
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation, they are directly measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if
vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the equity instruments
granted vest immediately unless the compensation
qualifies for recognition as asset, with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve in equity. If vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the
vesting period, based on the best available estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of equity instruments
that are expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number
of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.
recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

No adjustment to expense

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting
date, when the vested share options are later forfeited
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

o Exploration of mine; and
o Trading of carpets

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service line requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. All inter-
segment transfers are carried out at arms length prices.

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except finance costs, income tax and corporate income
and expenses which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment are
not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but corporate assets
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not allocated
to a segment, which primarily applies to the Group’s
headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAES:tHFEH®E &)
POLICIES (continued)

(w) Related parties (w) BAEAL
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is MZEMBREMS  ETIER
considered to be related to the Group if: T -BAEATHERAEE BE
AL

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly (i) ZATHEENEESNER—
through one or more intermediaries, to control Bk % EF 1 T fl AR &
the Group or exercise significant influence over B E R B S RAEE I
the Group in making financial and operating RREBERFENNHEE
policy decisions, or has joint control over the b AT HEEEREE 2 =
Group; il 7

(ii) the Group and the party are subject to common (ii) AEBEZ AT ZHEE
control; il

(iiiy  the party is an associate of the Group or a joint iy BATAAEEZHEEAQA
venture in which the Group is a venturer; SAE—MeELE A5E

REGERZ—:

(iv)  the party is a member of key management (ivy BATARFREEZEFEER
personnel of the Group or is a close family J‘EXE‘?ZE%/\iZE?ﬁ
member of such an individual, or is an entity Bz EEAES
under the control, joint control or significant TE%HZ—HT@EEKT/EJJZ
influence of such individuals; R

(v) the party is a close family member of a party (v) ZATROFFMZ AT ZE
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control, BB Sk FE A
joint control or significant influence of such HEEGIS A ITREERTE
individuals; or 7721’?’%3 3k

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan (vi) FZALRRAEEREMNE
which is for the benefit of employees of the B(REAEBEZHEATL)
Group or of any entity that is a related party of 1B 8 2 M= i 5837 2 Bk 18
the Group. BmAETE

Close family members of an individual are those family FALTZEZBRERTAIAT AN

members who may be expected to influence, or be aﬁ‘-iﬁﬂﬁ&%ﬁ%%i’séi/\i_}zﬁﬁz

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the HEBIZREKE -

entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a clearly distinguishable
component of the Group’s business that has been
disposed of or is classified as held for sale, which
represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations of the Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
rarely equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Depreciation

The Group depreciates its property, plant and equipment using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of
4 to 50 years. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Fair value of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than CIP, are stated at
fair value based on the directors’ estimate. In determining
the fair value, the directors have used a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates. The directors have exercised
their judgement as to the estimates used, the appropriateness
of method of valuation used and that the assumptions used
therein are reflective of current market conditions.

Impairment of receivables

The Group's management reviews receivables on a regular
basis to determine if any provision for impairment is necessary.
The impairment loss on receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
Allowances for impairment of receivables are determined by
management of the Group based on the repayment history
of its debtors and the current market conditions. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. Management reassesses the impairment
of receivables, if any, at the reporting date.

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

The carrying value of exploration and evaluation assets is
reviewed for impairment when events and changes in the
estimated commercially viable quantities of mineral resources
of the underlying mine indicate that the carrying value of the
exploration and evaluation assets may not be recoverable. The
Group considers no fact and circumstance occurred which
would suggest that the carrying amount of exploration and
evaluation assets may exceed its recoverable amount.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Group tests on annual basis whether goodwill is impaired
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3(j)
and as set out in note 19. The recoverable amounts of CGUs
are determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of judgement and estimates
of the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs,
the timeframe for the cash flows forecast and the suitable
discount rates in order to calculate the present value. Details in
impairment assessment are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Valuation of convertible bonds

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for the Group's convertible bonds which
are not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied. The fair
value of the liability and equity components of the convertible
bonds are estimated by an independent professional valuer
based on their techniques. The fair value of these components
varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Any change in these variables so adopted may materially affect
the estimation of the fair value of these components.

Control of Qinghai Forest Source Mining
Industry Developing Company Limited
("“QHFSMI")

As described in note 18(d) to the financial statements, the
directors of the Company are now in the process of changing
the directorship and management of one of the subsidiaries
of the Group, namely QHFSMI, but the process has not yet
been completed up to the date of the approval of the Group's
consolidated financial statements. As the Group is the sole
shareholders of QHFSMI and after obtaining the legal opinion
on the control on QHFSMI, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of QHFSMI under a statute.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to the
financial statements. Turnover of the Group is the revenue from
these activities. Revenue from the Group’s principal activities
and other income recognised is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZTTNF+_A=+T—HILFE

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

W3 & H Atb U A

AREBZ TBEBRIBRRM TS -
AEELEEBARERZZER 2 W -
SEEBRZEBEBH WG REMBA
(N

Consolidated

BESEER BALEEEY &4
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“EEnE —EENE —ZENE ZEENE —EE0E —TTN\F
T TR TEL T TiEn T
Revenue &
Sale of goods HEEm 10,332 12,846 - 6,418 10,332 19,264
Other income Hetg A
Bank interest income FITFBHRA 51 182 - 1 51 183
Interest income from loan receivables &3 e WFUE 2
MEKA 1,736 3,738 - - 1,736 3,738
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (note) &M B A2 Mz
(3E) 703 6,280 8,341 - 9,044 6,280
Sub-leasing rental income AREEKA - 20 - - - 20
Sundry income ZBEUA 25 532 - 20 25 552
2,515 10,752 8,341 21 10,856 10,773
Note: B -
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZWE

On 16 January 2009, the Group completed the disposal of the entire
equity interests in a subsidiary, namely BJFSMI for a consideration of
HK$10,000,000. As at the date of disposal, BJFSMI had net assets of
HK$9,332,000. Accordingly, a gain of HK$668,000 was recognised in
profit or loss during the year. Details of this disposal transaction are fully
described in note 36(a).

On 20 March 2009, the Group completed the disposal of the entire
equity interests in its subsidiaries, namely Orient Carpet and its
subsidiary, namely HZOCM, for a consideration of HK$19.3 million of
which (a) HK$12.2 million was used to set off against the net current
liabilities of HZOCM and (b) HK$7.1 million was paid in cash on
completion date. Accordingly, a gain of HK$8,341,000 was recognised
in profit or loss during the year. Details of this disposal transaction are

fully described in note 36(c).

RZTTZNF—A+B AEEZERLER
REBRRERRRZE=BRAEZR REA
10,000,000/ 7T - RHE B - ERZRREE B
EFE9,332,0008 L At NFEERIER
RIER W 25668,0008 Lo ZHER S ZFBEH
K FE36(a) ©

RZZETAE=ZA=-FTH AEEREKLE
HERRAH B RENE AR (EMNEH )
(BAEAEEHRBAR) 22 HBR AR R
{8 7319,300,000% 7T * & 9 (a)12,200,0007% 7T
EAREKEEMNRF B HE B EFEK
(b)7,100,0007% Jt B A SE A% A BALAIR € E 1 -
Hit - NREEEREEERERKZS,341,000%
Too R E R F 2 FIEE R M E36(c) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE —ZZTNF+_-_A=+—HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

Note: (Continued)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (Continued)

On 30 April 2009, the Group completed the disposal of the entire equity
interests in its subsidiaries, namely Jackley China and its subsidiaries, for
a consideration of HK$1. As at the date of disposal, Jackley China and
its subsidiaries had net liabilities of HK$2,000. Accordingly, a gain of
HK$2,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the year. Details of this
disposal transaction are fully described in note 36(d).

On 4 May 2009, the Group completed the disposal of the entire equity
interests in its subsidiaries, namely 626 Limited and its subsidiary,
HKFSMID, for a consideration of HK$1. As at the date of disposal, 626
Limited and its subsidiary had net liabilities of HK$33,000. Accordingly,
a gain of HK$33,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the year.
Details of this disposal transaction are fully described in note 36(e).

On 6 March 2008, the Group disposed of all 75.5% equity interests
in a subsidiary, namely Kaicheng (Hong Kong) Company Limited
("Kaicheng”), for a consideration of HK$1. As at the date of disposal,
Kaicheng had net liabilities of HK$842,000. Accordingly, a gain of
HK$842,000 was recognised in profit or loss during 2008. Details of this
disposal transaction are fully described in note 36(g).

On 30 May 2008, the Group disposed of all 51% equity interests in a
subsidiary, namely International Carpet Company Limited (“ICC"), for
a consideration of HK$200,000. As at the date of disposal, ICC had
net liabilities of HK$5,238,000. Accordingly, a gain of HK$5,438,000
was recognised in profit or loss during 2008. Details of this disposal
transaction are fully described in note 36(h).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZTTNF+_A=+T—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to management of the Group for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and review of these components’ performance.
The business components in the internal reporting to
management of the Group are determined following the
Group's major product and service lines. The Group has
identified the following reportable segments.

(a) the exploration of mine in the PRC (Commercial
operations has not yet been commenced during the
year); and

(b) the trading of carpets segment represents the trading of
carpets of renowned brand names.

There was no intersegment sale and transfer during the year
(2008: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Exploration of mine

TEEN (&)

Trading of carpets

Consolidated

REHEF EEBE g4
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Z2ENE ZEENE ZE30E —ZENE ZEENE —EENE
TR T TR FAT TR T
Reportable segment revenue: RENEYE -
From external customers RENEER 2 s - - 10,332 12,846 10,332 12,846
Reportable segment loss RENEER (406,344) (266,235) (1,571) (9,896) (407,915) (276,131)
Bank interest income FATFEHA 1 48 - 93 1 141
Depreciation g 811 937 - 50 811 987
Assets in disposal group classified as held for HEEEAEAR
sale - loss on re-measurement to fair value ~ fEHE 2 EE~
less costs to sell ENHEATE
HEERAZER - 1,730 - - - 1,730
Impairment loss on goodwill BERERR 368,401 253,030 - - 368,401 253,030
Provision for impairment loss of other Eh RS ERE
receivables BEEE 30,965 - - - 30,965 -
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMBRRZ R 668 - 33 5,438 701 5,438
Reportable segment assets REDEEE 369,990 774,902 958 1,275 370,948 776,177
Additions to non-current segment assets REEHRBDAE
during the year BEEN 4,497 1,030 - 61 4,497 1,091
Reportable segment liabilities RENEERE 39,220 199,442 51 52 39,271 199,494
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZTTNF+_A=+T—HILFE

»EE R (#)

RAEEZENBME 2 RS REETE
BERP2INAEE T ZHBEHFTOER

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group's key financial figures as presented in

the financial statements as follows: W
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EENF
Group rEE FET THET
Reportable segment revenue WmEDHEKR 10,332 12,846
Revenue from discontinued operations E%%i%&%%ﬂ‘%zqﬁlﬁé - 6,418
Consolidated revenue A W 10,332 19,264
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—ZEEAF —ZENF
FExT FAT
Reportable segment loss WEDFHEE (407,915) (276,131)
Finance costs EM‘%EXZK (7,920) (22,521)
Other unallocated income I NN N 764 8,209
Other unallocated expenses HEiRHAEFZ (25,457) (28,374)
Loss before income tax and RPTIS TR B8R I TS RIS 1B
discontinued operations (440,528) (318,817)
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EENF —TETNF
FET FHT
Reportable segment assets WEDHEE 370,948 776,177
Other corporate assets HEMRARIEE 298,626 2,831
Assets in disposal group classified DERBELEZHESECEE
as held for sale - 61,589
Group assets SEEE 669,574 840,597
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EENEF —EENE
FHET FET
Reportable segment liabilities WMEDFEEE 39,271 199,494
Other corporate liabilities HEMArRAE 2,567 7,053
Liabilities in disposal group classified DEABEHEZHERBZER
as held for sale - 50,271
Group liabilities SEEE 41,838 256,818
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

The Group's revenues from external customers are divided into
the following geographical areas:

TEEN (&)

AEBRBEIIEES 2 WEILAT RS

o

Hong Kong (Domicile) Macau PRC United States of America Consolidated
EE(BE) 1! # %8 o)
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“EEAfF |ZTT)\F |ZBBAf |ZTT)\F |ZBEAf |ZTT)\F |SBBAf |ZTT)\F [SBEAf | ZTI)\F
TiER T TEL T TiER T TEx T TR FEL
Reportable segment ~ HEHBUE:
revenue:

From external customers ~ RESMEEF 10,332 7810 - 135 - 3,17 - 1,784 10,332 12,846
Non-current assets FRBEE 185,027 332 - - | 369772 | 734,663 - - | 554799 | 734,995

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, HK$10,332,000
or 100% of the Group's revenues were derived from a
single customer in its trading of carpets segment (2008:
HK$2,024,000 or 16%). As at 31 December 2009, no trade
receivables were due from this customer (2008: HK$43,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZTTNF+_A=+T—HILFE

7.

FINANCE COSTS

7.

Bt 75 B A

Continuing operations

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—senF —FT)F
FHERT FHT
Interest on bank and other borrowings ~ —F R F| 8 7 817 & E b & A&
due within one year 1,518 624
Finance leases EEFR LY 5 13
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR &S 2 HEF 2 (MFE30)
(note 30) 6,397 21,884
7,920 22,521

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting)

the following:

Continuing operations

BRET 1S B AT & 18

BASHRABEENEG, (GTAIRTE

I8 :

Discontinued operations

Consolidated

BEGEER BRLESEER g8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEENE —RENF ZEENE —ZENE ZEENE —2ENF
TR TEx TR Tir TR TEn
Cost of inventories recognised as expense  BRARIZFENA 10,020 10,506 - 6,513 10,020 17,019
Depreciation (note a below) & (Txhiita)
- owned assets -BEAE 958 2,170 - 1,185 958 3,355
- leased assets -HgEE 63 94 - = 63 94
1,021 2,264 - 1,185 1,021 3,449
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BREEFERH - - - 244 - 24
Auditors' remuneration RERME 510 494 - - 510 494
Assets in disposal group classified as held HESENEARELEL
for sale - loss on re-measurement to BE-BNMGEATHE
fair value less costs to sell RHEERAZER - 1,730 - 13,680 = 15,410
Bad debts written off W - - - 11,720 - 11,720
Exchange loss, net EREETFE - 400 - - = 400
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR 2 M (703) (6,280) (8,341) - (9,044) (6,280)
Impairment loss of goodwill (note 19) HEREER (F:E19) 368,401 253,030 - - 368,401 253,030
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BELERBARZER
(note 37) ** (HiFE37) *+ - 11,027 - - - 11,027
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries LERBARZER
(note b below) ** (T Xffztb) #* 10,534 - - - 10,534 -
Loss on disposals of property, LENFE BERREL
plant and equipment ** Fig+ 10 2,090 - - 10 2,090
Operating lease charges on land and THREF EERNER
buildings 1,449 6,936 - 154 1,449 7,090
Outgoings in respect of leasing properties ~ AEAENEZ i 220 1,545 - - 220 1,545
Provision for impairment loss of EhERFEREER
other receivables (note 24)** 5 (fits2a) + 30,965 - - - 30,965 -
Staff costs, including directors' emoluments ~ 8 IR A - BEEEHE
(note 14) (fi3E14) 4,426 20,807 - 1,500 4,426 22,307

* %k

consolidated income statement.

Included in “Other operating expenses” on the face

of the

* %

Bt \GaiRake [HgeErx] -
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B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

8.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

No depreciation expenses (2008: HK$810,000) were included
in cost of sales and depreciation expenses of HK$1,021,000
(2008: HK$2,639,000) were included in administrative
expenses.

On 21 August 2009, the Group completed the disposal of the
entire equity interests in its subsidiaries, namely AIEL and its
subsidiaries, for a consideration of HK$2,000,000. As at the
date of disposal, AIEL and its subsidiaries had net assets of
HK$12,534,000. Accordingly, a loss of HK$10,534,000 was
recognised in profit or loss during the year. Details of this

8.

disposal transaction are fully described in note 36(f).

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had
no estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong for both years. PRC foreign enterprise income tax has not

been provided as the PRC subsidiaries incurred assessable losses

for both years.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and the accounting

loss at applicable tax rates:

BRETSHATEE (&)

(a) WENERY (ZZTZT)/\F :810,000/
TO)RFASEE KA - FTER 1,021,000
B (ZFZ/\F 12,639,000/ 70) 5F
NG

(b) RZZZAFENAZ+—H £&H
LA X {82,000,000% 7t i & /\E/‘AIEL&
EMBAR (RAEERBRR)Z
2HRAER RN EE B AIELKR H
Wi A FI¥ER & E)F1E12,534,00008
ToE AFEERIBERERER
10,534,000/ Lo i HHERX S 2 1BH
B FE36(f)

FREBR X

HRASERMEFESEEESELET
Al 5T ERR B A - 8 Bt B FIIF
EHEE - AR P REME RN MEFE
BRSERNEBE  RLERPEIIED
EFSBRFLBE-

REAMEAEMERAY BestEE
ZEERINE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—BENE —EENF
T FHR
Loss before income tax KPS R AT 1B (432,187) (348,482)
Tax at the applicable rates to profit in HRFERB e AER 2
the tax jurisdictions concerned wEANRBEAREXGHE 2 HIA (72,125) (79,279)
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERMBA 2B E (474) (2,030)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PRI MBI HEZ 2 G2 71,877 76,132
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary REREREEE 2 RETE
differences - 57
Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised AEESHH EFRE 2 RERTE
tax losses utilised this year EBE MG E (83) =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTIEBE B2 805 5,120
Income tax expense FriS Bl - =
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LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

10.

11.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors did not recommend any payment of
dividend during the year (2008: Nil).

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As mentioned in note 1, during the year ended 31 December
2008, the business of carpet manufacturing was carried out by
its disposed subsidiaries, namely HZOCM and Tang Shan Win
Alliance (collectively referred to as the “Carpet Manufacturing
Group”) whilst the business of goods trading was carried
out by the Group's other disposed subsidiaries, namely Wise
Mount and Win Alliance (collectively referred to as the “Goods
Trading Business Group”). As these two businesses had been
suffering persistent losses, on 4 December 2008, the Group
entered into two separate sale and purchase agreements to
dispose of the Carpet Manufacturing Group and the Goods
Trading Business Group. The Carpet Manufacturing Group and
the Goods Trading Business Group are collectively referred to as
Discontinued Operations (note 26). The disposals of the Carpet
Manufacturing Group and the Goods Trading Business Group
were completed in March and February 2009 respectively. The
comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2008
present these two businesses as discontinued operations in
accordance with HKFRS 5.

10.

11.

[ g=\

FRNEXFE
TNEFE)

CRIEEEER

EHRETIRNERMEE (ZF

W1 RBEZEENF+ A
S+ —HULEFE #wHRUEEHBIRLAE
BEHEZHBRARIEME T HE RE
LR (A e EEE] )BT
MEREEXEBKABAAEBEE BE 2 Hith
WEARSEERBE (SBAEEREE
¥BEEDET AR LELEAMEBEELE —&H
SXEBE BAEER_ZZN\F+=A
MHF MO BLEE H#E AL EHHH
BEEEREREEXEBEE B RS
EEREREEEBSERBACRLL
EEB (i) HHUEEERE R
BEEXBEENESTEI IR T NF
SARZARK -BE_ZZENF+A
=+ HIEFEZEBRETREESTB
HEAFESHTRH LAMIBEBEY BB
R E R o

RFKRERBERAT « —F
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11.

An analysis of the results and cash flows of Discontinued
Operations included in the consolidated income statement and

BRIEREER (&)

%@5”5/\ MEBEaRMGAEERERZE
IHEEEK 2 EBE MR RES TN

the consolidated statement of cash flows was as follows: T :
2009 2008
—EENE TN\
The Carpet The Goods The Carpet The Goods
Manufacturing Trading Manufacturing Trading
Business Business Total Business Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WHHEER EREREK F-H HWRBEEK EREEEK it
TEL T TiEn T FHL FER
Revenue 6= - - - 6,418 - 6,418
Other income A - - - 21 - 21
Expenses ha - - - (10,364) (12,060) (22,424)
- - - (3,925) (12,060) (15,985)
Income tax expense FERAL - - - - - -
- - - (3,925) (12,060) (15,985)
Loss on re-measurement to fair value ~ EFtEATEFEE
less costs to sell KAz EE - - - (11,540) (2,140) (13,680)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR Ma
(note 36(c)) (F36(0)) 8,341 - 8,341 - - -
Gain/(Loss) for the year from BRIEEEEKL
discontinued operations AEEWE/ (BB) 8,341 = 8,341 (15,465) (14,200) (29,665)
Operating cash flows BERER - - - 2 (1) 1
Investing cash flows RERER - - - (153) = (153)
Total cash flows BEER - - - (151) (1) (152)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation
of prepaid lease payments of Discontinued Operations are set
out in note 8.

Employee benefit expense of Discontinued Operations is set out
in note 14.

There were no assets and liabilities of Discontinued Operations
as at 31 December 2009. Assets and liabilities of Discontinued
Operations as at 31 December 2008 are set out in note 26 in
details.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

12. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF 12.
THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$432,187,000 (2008: HK$341,321,000), a loss
of HK$669,839,000 (2008: HK$54,670,000) has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13.

The calculations of basic and diluted losses per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the
following data:

ARAFEEAERMEEER

AR BHEAR AEG4RE ETE432,187,000
B (ZZEZ)\F :341,321,000870)
# - 58669,839,0008 0 (Z T T )\ F:
54,670,000/ 7T, ) 2 |5 18 B AR &) 8 %5
WK

BRER

AREHERANBIEERERNREEEET)
RIBA TR E

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’'000
—sEnF —TENF
FHERT FHET
Loss EiE
Loss for the year attributable to AUNGtEEREABELRFE
the owners of the Company for KARHEB AEBLER
the purpose of basic loss per share (432,187) (341,321)
2009 2008
ZEBAF —ET)N\F
Number of shares g g
Weighted average number of ordinary AUETEERERNEBELBR 2
shares for the purpose of basic loss hn#E 15 85
per share, after adjusting (WEHWF\* TTNF
for the open offer in 2009 ETARBEZHE) 5,281,679,494 2,543,011,265

No diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of the
Company is presented for the years ended 31 December 2009
and 2008 as there were no dilutive potential shares.

MR EABREEETE R REE
=ERNER=BE NG _H=mr—H
IFFEXEZ2 AR EEE A RIS SRS
BEE-

RFKREZRBRAT e —TTAFFHR 99



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 SR & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

13.

LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

From continuing operations:

13.

The calculations of basic and diluted losses per share from
continuing operations attributable to the owners of the

Company are based on the following data:

BREBE &)
REFELSEXEK:

ARRHAARBIERELLEEBERER
RESEBETRBIATBURETE

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2EhE —2INF
FERT FHET
Loss for the year attributable to BAEGREREEAFE
the owners of the Company for RRAEEB AEASEE
the purpose of basic loss per share (432,187) (341,321)
Profit/(Loss) for the year from AEBERIEKEEERK
Discontinued Operations wmF (EE) 8,341 (29,665)
Less: Loss for the year attributable to AN SRR IR R R AL
non-controlling interests from BERIHEEXEBERE
Discontinued Operations - (3,617)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to ~ ZAFEAR QA #EE ARG
the owners of the Company from BRI EER RN (FE)
Discontinued Operations 8,341 (26,048)
Loss for the year attributable to RUAFTEEREARBEAFE
the owners of the Company for RARER ABGFELE
the purpose of basic loss per share E |
from continuing operations (440,528) (315,273)

No diluted loss per share from continuing operations
attributable to the owners of the Company is presented for the
years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 as there were no

dilutive potential shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

13.

14.

LOSS PER SHARE (continued)
From discontinued operations:

Basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Company from Discontinued Operations was HKO.1 cent (2008:
basic loss of HK1.0 cent per share), based on the earnings
for the year attributable to the owners of the Company from
Discontinued Operations of approximately HK$8,341,000
(2008: loss of approximately HK$26,048,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue as set out above.

The loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2008 is
restated due to the issuance of new shares upon the open offer
in 2009.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

Continuing operations

13.

14.

Discontinued operations

BREBE &)
RECKRIEKEEFK:

ARARHEEABEERIEKEEBTR
EXEBRNABROIBW(ZEZNEF:
BRERNEEAE1.0BW)  DRIEBEZFE
RABEEABEERIEREEBAT
498,341,000 L (ZZEZ ) N\F  [FEY
26,048,000/%5 7T ) &ixﬁﬁ L B EITE
BRINETFHIEAHE

HE_ZZENF+_A=+T—HILFEZ
BREER _TENFAHBERETH
B T IAE S -

E)ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁi (BEESMH

Consolidated

BESEER BALREER G4
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“EENE ZEENE 2 5 1%:3 ZEENE k2 J%:3 ZEENE
TER FHL TER TAT TER FHL
Wages, salaries and allowances I8 HeREH 4,363 20,434 - 1,410 4,363 21,844
Pension costs - defined contribution KL MR
olans ~FELERHE 63 373 - 90 63 163
4,426 20,807 - 1,500 4,426 22,307
RERBEERERAA e — ST L FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 15. EEREREBEAEMS
SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=EM
Salaries,
allowances  Contribution to
and benefits retirement
Fees in kind  benefit scheme Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fe 2MR BIRER
we BUEAN HE TR @5t
s FTEx TR FTHEx FEx
2009 “EENE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Law Fei Shing BEW K E - 1,800 12 1,812
Mr. Chan Sung Wai REEEE - - - =
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing BREIR L& (i) = = = -
Mr. Wang Donghai TRELEE (ii) = = - -
Mr. Zhao Guogiang B 58 5L & (iii) - - - -
Mr. Fok Po Tin EEMLE (iv) = = = -
Mr. Tam Owen BEERE (v) - - - -

Non-executive directors FHITES

Mr. Lam Shing Tsun, MRBX 2 52 4
Edmond (vi) 8 - - 8
Mr. Zhang Zhenming SRR K& (vii) = - - -
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MR L E 60 - - 60
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FEERLE 30 - - 30
Mr. Chow Pui Fung BAEE R4 = = - -
98 1,800 12 1,910
Notes: B 5 -
(i) Appointed on 3 July 2009. (i) RZTENFLA=BEZE-
(ii) Appointed on 10 September 2009. (i) REZTENFNATBEZE-
(iii) Appointed on 23 December 2009. (iii) RZTEZEhFE+=ZA=+=8
BT
(iv) Resigned on 16 April 2009. (iv) REZTTENFNA+NBEE-
(v) Retired on 2 June 2009. (v) RZBETAEAAZARE-
(vi) Removed on 8 December 2009. (vi) RZZEZENF+=ZA/N\BHE
% o
(vii) Appointed on 17 July 2009. (vii) RZTETNFELA+LBES
Fo

102 Xian Yuen Titanium Resources Holdings Limited » Annual Report 2009



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & =

“ETAEH-ASH-ALEE

15. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND 15. EEREREBAEMS
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS (#4)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EE=ME (@)
Salaries,
allowances Contribution
and benefits to retirement
Fees in kind benefit scheme Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2R BIRER
e EMEF FHEIER it
W& FET THT FHET FET
2008 —EENF
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Law Fei Shing IR S - 1,800 12 1,812
Mr. So Chi Keung BLRiE (i) - 100 5 105
Mr. Fok Po Tin EEHLE (ii) - - - -
Mr. Leung Kai Hung ZRUA R E (iii) - 50 2 52
Mr. Sun Tak Yan, Desmond BB L4 (iv) - 71 4 75
Mr. Yeung Delon T»z?)\ A (v) - 220 11 231
Mr. Tam Owen BEERE - 1,600 10 1,610
Dr. Yuen Ming Kai, Clement R#{=E+ (vi) - 2,850 12 2,862
Mr. Chan Sung Wai REELE (vii) = = = =
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Lam Shing Tsun, MRAR 18 55 4
Edmond 80 - - 80
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MHBHZLE 60 = = 60
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FEREE 30 - - 30
Mr. Wan Hon Keung BB EE (viii) 28 - = 28
Mr. Chow Pui Fung =3 e (ix) = = = =
198 6,691 56 6,945
Notes: B = -
(i) Resigned on 12 November 2008. (i) RZZEENF+—A+=-H#&
fFo
(ii) Resigned on 16 April 2009. (ii) RZZEZNFHEA+SHE
f£o
(iii) Resigned on 29 October 2008. (iii) R-ZEZENE+A_-_t+NLBE
fFo
(iv) Appointed on 14 July 2008 and resigned on 12 (iv) RZZETZNF+ATHBEZ
November 2008. FXR—_ZFZENF+—A+=
B & T
(v) Resigned on 18 November 2008. (v) RZZZNEF+— A+ /\BE
fFo
(vi) Resigned on 1 November 2008. (vi) R-ZZEENF+—HA—H#&
Eo
(vii) Appointed on 1 November 2008. (vii) A—_EENFE+-A—BHEZ
fEo
(viiiy  Resigned on 30 November 2008. (vii)y RZTENF+—A=1HE

(ix) Appointed on 30 November 2008.

(ix)

Eo
RN \FhpA=t+EE
R

RERIBEBRERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office (2008: Nil).

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year. In 2008, the Group received written consents from
certain directors of the Company to waive remuneration
of an aggregate amount of HK$336,000 payable to
them.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group during the year included one director
(2008: three) and their emoluments are reflected in
the above analysis. Details of the emoluments of the

15. EERSREEAENS

(#&)

(a)

(b)

EEME (#)

FR AEELTBAARBEES
MERME  (FRMAREELR
MR 7 B FRBERME (=
EENEFE) o

FRUETAESEHEXRER
EEAME 2L -R_FEN
FoAREEKIEARBETESRK
EAEEHENZERETESFHE
336,000 L2 EHAE °

EUBESHFMAL

FA-AEEBRUESHFHALE
B—uEE(ZZZNF:=6)
BEZMEFELELXDH-F
BT AL(ZFTNE:

remaining four individuals (2008: two) during the year W) 2BNEFBWT
are as follows:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®BAE —EENF
T FHR
Basic salaries, housing benefits,  EAFH ¢ FEEEA - 2L
other allowances and MEYF =
benefits in kind 1,032 2,740
Contribution to retirement RIREFFH 8 2 R
benefit scheme 40 10
1,072 2,750
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 15.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The number of the remaining highest paid individuals

EERGREEAEME
(%)

(b) BEfUEZSHFMAL (&)

e FATEEZ BT RS H M

whose emoluments fell within the following band is as ATHBWT:
follows:

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—ZBZhF ZETNF
FTERT FHET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 4 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%& 7t 21,500,000/ JT — 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7t £2,000,000/% 7T - 1
4 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the above highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office (2008: Nil).

FA - ARNEEILER L &S H
AL XHERBE - tERIMARE
@ 5 X N BR B 2 2R oK A AR BB
B(ZFTNF &)

RFKREZBRBRAE « —TTNFFIR
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B3 R & M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. V¥ BERZE

(a) Group (a) &TKH
Leasehold
improvements,
Buildings furniture, office
at the Plant and equipment and
mining site Buildings machinery motor vehicles aP Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RENE
FRL S %6 &H-
BT ¥ BERME  HORERAE ERBIR @it
TAL Thix Thr TR TAL FATL
At 1 January 2008 RZEFN\F-A-A
Valuation e - 20,607 29,454 15,922 - 65,983
Cost KA - - - - 6,784 6,784
Accumulated depreciation  EFHTE - (1,797) (16,845) (4,996) - (23,638)
Net book amount RAFE - 18,810 12,609 10,926 6,784 49,129
Year ended HEZZT )%
31 December 2008 +-A=+-H
IHFE
Opening net book amount ~ FIEEFE - 18,810 12,609 10,926 6,784 49,129
Transferred from exploration & & &
and evaluation assets R hEE
(note 22) (Hizt22) - - - - 2,002 2,002
Additions RE - - - 439 890 1,329
Transfer from CIP ERAERIR 2,892 - - - (2,892) -
Disposals e - - - (2,126) - (2,126)
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR
(note 36(h)) (B3zE36(h)) - - - (30) - (30)
Reclassified as assets held ~ EFHBAZEHE
for sale (note 26) EE (F17526) - (19,960) (12,496) (1,268) (6,784) (40,508)
Deemed disposal of RIELEMBAR
subsidiaries (note 37) (f3£37) - - - (4,057) - (4,057)
Exchange differences ERER - 1,397 806 216 - 2,419
Depreciation ik - (247) (919) (2,283) = (3,449)
Closing net book amount ~ FXEEFE 2,892 - - 1817 - 4,709
At 31 December 2008 RZZSNE
+-A=t-"H
Valuation fhfE 2,892 - - 5,354 = 8,246
Accumulated depreciation  23HHTE - - - (3,537) - (3,537)
Net book amount REFE 2,892 - - 1817 = 4,709
Year ended BE-ZIANE
31 December 2009 +=A=+-8
LFE
Opening net book amount ~ E 1A FE 2,892 - - 1,817 - 4,709
Additions NE - - - 32 - 32
Disposals rf 3 - - - (10) - (10)
Disposals of subsidiaries LERBAR
(note 36(f)) (Bi5+36(f)) - - - (85) - (85)
Exchange differences ERER (13) - - (7) = (20)
Depreciation nE (222) - - (799) - (1,021)
Closing net book amount E&REFE 2,657 - - 948 - 3,605
At 31 December 2009 R-BEh
T-A=t-H
Valuation fh1E 2,879 - - 4,734 - 7,613
Accumulated depreciation 27 E (222) - - (3,786) - (4,008)
Net book amount RHFE 2,657 - - 948 - 3,605
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(a)

Group (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009, the directors carried out a
valuation to determine the fair value of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. The fair values estimated
by the directors using a depreciated replacement cost
approach do not differ significantly from their carrying
amounts and no revaluation adjustment has been
recognised in the current year. The effective date of the
revaluation was on 31 December 2009.

Had the Group's property, plant and equipment been
measured on historical cost basis, their carrying amounts
would have been as follows:

16. ME¥ -BERKRE &)

(a)

rEE (&)

RZZEENF+_A=+—RH &
EREEAEB ZME BE MR
Bz A EETHE EEERT
EFERNOLEF 2 A HERAR
EETESERER BXENASF
EHREMBE - B ZERAY
RIBBAF+T-RA=+—H-

WARBEZYE BFE REKERE
SERAEESRR HAREENT

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

—ZBZAF ZZE)N\F

FET FHT

Buildings at the mining site Rt 2 2185 2,657 2,892
Leasehold improvements, MEWERE M PHAERE

furniture, office equipment St
and motor vehicles 948 1,817

As at 31 December 2008, included in the property,
plant and equipment were the costs of approximately
HK$474,000 held under a finance lease and the related
accumulated depreciation was HK$355,000. The
balances were de-consolidated as a result of disposals of
subsidiaries during the year.

Buildings at the mining site are located in the PRC under
short-term lease.

RZZEZENF+ZA=+—HB'%
¥ BEAEHRERE—MHBE
HXFFH Z KA 49474,0007 7T
LA X & B8 2 51 37 8355,0007% 7T
HRERNELENBEAR  AET
STAGZAETE

REME 2 BFURHE - BEH
HE-

RERBERERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. MI¥- -HERRE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Company (b) A21F
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture, office
equipment and
motor vehicles
HK$'000
HEWE
A& - R -
WARERRE
FAT
At 1 January 2008 R_TZENF—H—H
Valuation [EXED 435
Accumulated depreciation Ritine (278)
Net book amount BRAEFE 157
Year ended 31 December 2008 HE TN \F+-_A=+—HILFE
Opening net book amount FAREFEE 157
Additions nE 16
Depreciation e (90)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 83
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENEFE+-_A=+—H
Valuation H1E 451
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (368)
Net book amount IRAEFE 83
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE-_ZZhAF+-A=1+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYRREFE 83
Depreciation e (73)
Closing net book amount FARREFEE 10
At 31 December 2009 R-ZEZEAF+=-A=+—H
Valuation H1E 451
Accumulated depreciation E (441)
Net book amount REFE 10
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS - GROUP 17.

18.

These represented the Group’s interests in leasehold land and
land use rights in the PRC, held on leases between 10 and
50 years. Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the
statement of financial position are summarised as follows:

ANEERE-F&H

ZERERE A BB 10504
WP B 2 T E + % o (E F A 18
%o RBERREZH Y FEES DM
-

2009 2008

HK$°000 HK$'000

—EENF —EENF

FET FHET

Opening net carrying amount FYEEFE - 13,926

Exchange differences MEH =5 - 380

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  TE{ T & 3R IH # 54 - (244)
Reclassified as assets in disposals group EHHDEALEEEDEA

classified as held for sale (note 26) FIEHE 2 & & (MFE26) - (14,062)

Closing net carrying amount FREEFE - -

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had not yet obtained the
relevant land use rights certificate for prepaid lease payments
with the carrying amount of approximately HK$8,640,000
which was reclassified as assets held for sale (note 26).

These prepaid lease payments are no longer held by the Group
as a result of disposals of subsidiaries during the year.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 18.

R_ZEENF+-_A=+—8 KREBHH
7 B 75 BR T {B 498,640,000/ 7T 2 &+ 7
ERIE AL REE  ZREER
BN BEARBIEHEEE (Hik26) -

HRFABHEMNB AR BAEETH
RERSBRNBEENE-

RBAR 2ERE - A RQT

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—23hf SN
B 5 FTEx T

Investments ®E
— Unlisted shares, at cost —JE LT IR AE (a) = 76,432
Due from subsidiaries A= NGTE =] (b) 1,031,360 1,227,147
Due to a subsidiary P — R B /B A Rl 3k IE (b) — (5)
Loans to a subsidiary BT —HEHNBARIZER (0) 2,423 11,956
1,033,783 1,315,530
Provision for impairment loss VEREN SRR (694,443) (316,929)
339,340 998,601

RERBERERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18.

(Continued)

Movement in the provision for impairment of interests in
subsidiaries is as follows:

REBAR2EEZ-ADH

(#&)

RMBARZ Rz RERBESHNT

2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE2EBAF —ZEZNE
FET FET
At 1 January Hn—HA—H (316,929) (295,279)
Additional impairment during the year FANEINRE (652,116) (21,650)
Reversal of impairment as a result of HEWBARERRE
disposals of subsidiaries 274,602 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (694,443) (316,929)
Notes: B 5 -
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) TEWNBERRFBLT:
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (i) RZZEZNF+ZA=1T—H

December 2009 are follows:

ZEBMBRARZFENT

Place of Percentage of Principal
incorporation/ Paid-up share/ equity attributable activities and
Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
AAEB ML, B B BARAE EMES EATEEREES L FTEERREEHE
Directly held
BEERE
Smooth Way International British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding,
Limited Islands Hong Kong
B B BB A BR A A KBRZES TRRIET 100% BREERR B
Cheerful Dragon Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding,
Islands Hong Kong
BEARAA KBRZES TRRIET 100% REERR B
Precious New Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding,
Islands Hong Kong
BEARNA RBRZES TRRIET 100% REZER BB
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #lZ —ZTTNF+_A=+T—RHILFE

18.
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

18.

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2009 are follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Paid-up share/

RBRAR z2ERE - A D F

(#&)

BiaE: (#&)

(a) TEWMBARGBNT : (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

TEAET-A=+-R
IBARZ AT

Principal
activities and

Name establish registered capital to the Company place of operation
PEEE R AL, B L b B BARE ERER AAFEERFED L FTEEBREE Y
Indirectly held
BERE
Energy International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Investments Holdings Hong Kong
Limited
RRRBERRERRERAR &HE TmR1E T 100% REER BB
Treasure Tone Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
EMBERAR ) TR IET 100% BB B
Ho Fai** Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Trading of carpets,
Hong Kong
R EE ¢ B TERIET 100% BEEMH B8
Kanson Development British Virgin Ordinary US$200 100% Investment holding,
Limited (“Kanson”) Islands Hong Kong
Kanson Development REBRZES EEAR200E T 100% BEER: B

Limited ([Kanson )
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18.
(Continued)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

Notes: (Continued)

18.

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

()

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2009 are follows: (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Paid-up share/

REBAR2EEZ-ADH

(#&)

Bt : (4)

(a) TEMBRARGFENAT: (4)

() R-FEAFT-A=t+-A
ZEEWBAAZHEET

(%)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Principal
activities and

Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
ARER AR AR S, B3 it B BRBRA SERESR FRREERFES L TEXBRQE B
Indirectly held (Continued)

MERE (4)

QHFSMI (note 4 and PRC HK$40,000,000 100% Exploration of mine,
note (d) below) PRC

BERR o 40,000,000 7T 100% TR
(P 3E4 K T 2B FE(d))

Inner Mongolia Forest PRC Not yet paid up 100% Not yet commenced
Source Mining Industry business
Developing Company
Limited (“IMFSMI")

(note 43(a) and
note (d) below)

NEERREERE T CEN:E 100% RN 32
BRAA
(TAEREZRR])

(Bi3E43(a) %
T X HtEE(d))

Hong Kong Forest Source Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Investment holding,
Mining Industry Holding HK$70,000,000 Hong Kong
Company Limited
("HKFSMIH")**

ERRREEERARAR &R R 100% REE  BE
(TBAERR]) ** 70,000,000/ 7T

o Subsidiaries audited by Grant Thornton Hong * Dy EWEB A FEEE

Kong.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

(if)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries disposed of

during the year (note 36) are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Paid-up share/

(4&)

Mizt: (&)

18. RINBARZERZ-—ADQH

(a) TEMBARGEBNT : (&)

(i) FRAHEZTEMEQE (K
F36) ZFIEMT

Percentage of
equity attributable

Principal
activities and

Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
DEER SEfR AR 3L R 3L 3t B BHRA EMELR ARAEEREAEDL FTEEBRQE B
Directly held
EERE
Jackley China British Virgin Ordinary US$100 100% Investment holding,
Islands Hong Kong
Jackley China REBELES @100 T 100% REER &E
AIEL British Virgin Ordinary US$2 100% Investment holding,
Islands Hong Kong
AIEL RBREXRES TimiR2ETT 100% REER &8
Indirectly held
BMESE
BJFSMI PRC RMB15,000,000 100% Mineral dressing and
trading of mineral
resources, PRC
It R Y AR #15,000,0007C 100% BEREEBEMEIR -
i
Wise Mount Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
Big BB TWRIET 100% REER &8
Win Alliance Hong Kong Ordinary 70% Trading of goods,
HK$1,000,000 Hong Kong
fe5 B2 B ARk 70% BEEEm &%
1,000,0007 7T
Tang Shan Win Alliance PRC Us$61,800 70% Manufacture of
carpets, PRC
& 1L B B2 HEY 61,800% 7T 70% SlEMH - P E
Orient Carpet Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% Investment holding
and trading of
carpets, Hong Kong
R 75 BB Ei@A%10,00078 T 100% REZERREBEMH

BB

RERBERERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(Continued)

18.

Notes: (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries disposed of

during the year (note 36) are as follows: (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Paid-up share/

REBAR2EEZ-—ADH

(#&)

Wit : (4)

(a) TEMBRARGFENAT: (4)

(i) ERHEZTEWB A (K
F36) ZFEBMT: (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Principal
activities and

Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
DRAEB FEMRAR LB L i B BRRA EMES ARAREERFBDL TEEBRQEDE
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERE (£)
HZOCM PRC US$4,940,000 100% Manufacture and sale
of carpets, PRC
BRI B e 4,940,000% 7T 100% SEREEBH P
Orient Finance (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% Provision of
Limited (“Orient finance,Hong Kong
Finance HK")
RIMB (FR)ERRAR  FHE 310,000 T 100% RERE BE
(IBEERIHH])
626 Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Trading of carpets,
Hong Kong
62674 A Al 30 TmkIET 100% BEEmH &8
HKFSMID Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Dormant, Hong Kong
BERREER Bk TERBT 100% LmEis B8
Go On Foundate Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% Dormant, Hong Kong
Limited (“Go On")
BRAZEERAF BE w2 T 100% EEX AR
(Iazl)
Wellspark Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
BESEARAAF BB ZTRRIB T 100% BEER B

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

114 Xian Yuen Titanium Resources Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2009

ERENEERRNAFEEAE
B RXEREATERLHAEEE
REDEEFEZIARBZHBER
Al -EXERR REEMCHERR
ZABERHBRITE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZT T NF+_A=+T—RHILFE

18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —- COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

These amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are not
expected to be repaid within the next twelve months. These
balances are classified as non-current assets accordingly.

These are unsecured loans provided to its subsidiary, Kanson
and are not repayable within 12 months from the reporting
date. Interest is charged on the outstanding balance at the rate
of HIBOR plus 1% per annum.

In September 2009, HKFSMIH, as the immediate holding
company of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI, passed the resolutions
to remove the legal representative and all the directors of
both QHFSMI and IMFSMI. As the legal procedures have not
been completed, the legal representative and the directors
of QHFSMI have not yet been formally removed and the
new legal representative and the director have not yet been
formally appointed up to the date of approval of the financial

statements.

18. RMBARZERZ—ZA DT

(#&)

BfaE: (#&)

(b)

ZEFRAR/EER 2R REHBAR
AR+ ZEARNEE Bt ZEER
DERFERDEE-

R T EMI B A Bl Kanson Z B 3R I
HEF BEAEREAHETZ@AN
BEREEEBRZFBIREBRITRE
FEMEBIEFE -

EEBRR(REBRBREARERRLZ
BEREZERARR-_ZTNFNLARB
REBER BRLEERREARARRZ
FEARKREZEEF - ANEREFH
AREM R EEF B HREREA S
FERRIEARZTREEHRENE
BR MIEARKRRERRALEAE
ZRE-




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

19. GOODWILL - GROUP 19. BE-X&H
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
RN —TENF
FER FHET
At 1 January ®n—B—H
Gross carrying amount IREBE 1,021,644 684,066
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (325,611) (72,581)
Net carrying amount REFE 696,033 611,485
Opening net carrying amount FOREFE 696,033 611,485
Acquisition of additional interests in W g — BT B A Rl s OME =
a subsidiary (note 35) (PfF3FE35) - 337,578
Impairment loss B E 1R (368,401) (253,030)
Closing net carrying amount FIREREFE 327,632 696,033
At 31 December B+=—BA=+-—H8
Gross carrying amount fRmEmAE 1,021,644 1,021,644
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (694,012) (325,611)
Net carrying amount RMEFE 327,632 696,033
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19.

GOODWILL - GROUP (continued)

Goodwill as at 31 December 2008 and 2009 arose from the
acquisitions of Kanson and represented the future economic
benefits from a mining project. As at 31 December 2008 and
2009, QHFSMI, a wholly owned subsidiary of Kanson, held an
exploration license for a mine located in Inner Mongolia, the
PRC.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2008 and
2009 represents the aggregate of goodwill arising from the
excess of the cost of investment in Kanson over the Group's
interest over the net fair value of Kanson's identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities for the acquisition of 51%
equity interest in Kanson made in 2007 and the goodwill
arising from the excess of the additional cost of investment in
Kanson over the Group's interest over the related net carrying
value of Kanson's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities for the acquisition of the remaining 49% equity
interest in Kanson made during in 2008 (note 35).

The carrying amount of goodwill has been tested for
impairment and its recoverable amount was determined based
on value-in-use calculations, performed by an independent firm
of professional valuers, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited,
covering a detailed thirteen-year forecast, as approved and
considered suitable for the mining industry by the directors.
The key assumptions adopted include the mine reserve based
on a technical assessment report by consulting geologists and
engineers and the expectations for the market development
and that the Group is able to obtain the mining rights of the
underlying mine from the relevant authorities in the PRC in
future and is able to raise fund to finance and develop the
mining project. The discount rate on which management has
based is determined with reference to specific risks relating to
the mining industry and the mining project.

19.

BHE-AEE8 #)

RZZEENFER_FTZEZNF+_A=+—
AzEEYEEB WiEKanson B E —
EREEE 2 BREENZ R2TF/)\
FRZZENF+_A=1+—H Kanson
ZEENBARSERRBAMNRPENA
S —EERZHFEER -

RZBEENFER_TETNFF+_A=1+—
Az A2 REEERKansonZ I & A
BHR ZZZEF R EKanson 51%&
AT AN E B R Kanson Z A] PR &
E AERFIARBEZAFFAEZERM
B 7 B2 N e Kanson 2 B8 9MR & Ak A
BHRAZZEZN\FAUEEKanson#R T49%
% 2 25 S AK B AR 2 B A Kanson 2 AT $# 3R
EE BELARIABEZEEERDFEZ
RET M EE A 2 B 2 A0 (P EE35) »

HEZEAERERENR ErkE$
EHBVEEGEMMNETISEMERA
AIRRBREREETE WERET=F2
HAER-EEOHE LG E A X
REBZEFELFHERBE KM ZEER
&@%&@ﬁﬂ%%&l&%Z&m%%

EREZERFEEREMISERE 22
M&ﬁ%lm%thﬂﬁ$lﬁ@&%
HEzE@EER 2 FREREER RIREER
EREREEREEE EEEREZN
PRS2 EZFBERREIERD 2 FER
BT o

RFKREZBRBRAE « —TTNFFIHR
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19.

GOODWILL — GROUP (continued)

Given the global financial turmoil which limits the ways of
fund raising to meet the future funding requirement of the
mining project and the possible deregistration of the vehicle
for obtaining the mining license (note 43(a)), the Group
intended to slow down the license application for the mining
project until (1) further funding can be secured; (2) the
change of the local management of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI
is completed; (3) the set up of a new vehicle for obtaining
the mining license is completed if the current vehicle for
obtaining the mining license is deregistered (note 43(a)); and
(4) certain amount of work is completed (note 22). As a result
of these considerations, which the directors have factored
into their value-in-use calculations and forecast, the directors
considered that there had been an impairment in goodwill of
HK$368,401,000 (2008: HK$253,030,000) during the year.
Should the discount rate increase and decrease by 1%, with
all other variables held constant, the impairment loss would
increase and decrease by HK$27.3 million and HK$29.6 million
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2009.

The discount rates and parameters used in determining the
discount rate are shown as below:

19.

BHE-XE£E8 (@)

EREHREEEBERS T RETREEE X
REGHFRZEERERDEBHRERY
AR A BE R RE 4 (FTRE43(a)) @ A & @ 4
WEREEE RBERZERAEE(A
BEE—FTES QFERREATER
FEMEBE 2 EBB 55K )IMEH
MR ZHAREAEY (HRAFARE
FIERIE IR 2 A Bl M s 88 (M9 E43(a)) ) s
kAR IR Z2HETHD (HF22) oA
ZERE (EFCHAAEAEEZGER
ERBHCBR EERAEFRAZEHE
8 1E 5368,401,0008 7L ( 2T )\ 4
253,030,000 7T, ) ° w3730 F 2 = M ER
1% WREMEEMESHEFTE  AJE
EEEAE+_A=+—BHILFEZHE
BB D B I &8 427,300,00078 7T
529,600,000 7T

EEMREEA I RERZ2HESMN
T

2009 2008

—ZEENEF —EENF

Discount rate I8 & 30.5% 20.0%
Inflation rate BARE 3% 2%
Initial life of the project HE 2V H 13 years# 13 yearsfF

Management of the Company is not aware of any other
probable changes that would necessitate changes in its key
estimates which will result in the carrying amount of goodwill
exceeding its recoverable amount.

At the time the Group acquired its interest in Kanson, the
mining license had not been obtained. As such, the purchase
consideration by the Group over the fair value of net assets
of Kanson acquired (not including the mining license) was
recognised as goodwill accordingly. Any value attributable to
the mining potential in Kanson was subsumed into the goodwill
arising from the acquisition of Kanson. Effectively substantial
amount of the goodwill balance represents the value of mining
license. If and when the Group obtains the mining license, the
directors intend to write down/amortise the goodwill as the
Group extracts and depletes the mining reserves.
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 20, AHHENBEE-XEH

- GROUP
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—gTnF —TENF
FHET FET
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FELEMHES LKA - 12,091

In March 2008, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries,
Capital Gain Assets Management Limited (“Capital Gain”), a
company in which Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (“Mr. Pang”) had
beneficial interests, and Mr. Pang entered into an agreement
such that, to assume the Group's obligations to contribute
approximately US$4,070,000 (HK$31,725,000 equivalent) to
the registered capital of Hebei Da Sheng Warranty Company
Limited (“Hebei Da Sheng”), 51% previously owned by the
Group, the Group agreed to allot and issue 804 ordinary
shares of Aurora Logistic Finance Group Inc. (“Aurora Logistic
Finance”), previously a 100% subsidiary of the Company, of
US$1.00 each to Capital Gain. As a result, the Group’s interest
in the Aurora Logistic Finance and its subsidiaries (the “Deemed
Disposal Group”) was diluted from 100% to 19.6%. The
balance of available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 December
2008 represented the cost of 19.6% equity interest in the
Deemed Disposal Group. Details of the calculation are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements.

On 21 August 2009, the Group disposed of AIEL and its
subsidiaries, together with the available-for-sale financial assets.
Details of the disposals are set out in note 36(f) to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2008, these assets were stated at cost less
impairment as the range of reasonable fair value estimates was
so significant that the directors of the Company were of the
opinion that their fair value could not be measured reliably.

RZZZENF=ZR ARAREETHE
‘A a) B Capital Gain Assets Management
Limited ([ Capital GainJ)(§’Y¥%$
(IZEE]HEEERRRLRAF)R
%o & 5T 3 WAk 0 B Ik - Capital GamHE\
AEEREBEETIEARITERER QA
(AdE REk]) (R&EBZ A% E51 %
2 A7) Z & AR H & 494,070,000
o0 (FE 731,725,000 70) 2 BT
A2 @ 7 & 7 Capital Gainfid % & 317
804[% Aurora Logistic Finance Group Inc.
(TAurora Logistic Finance]) (ARQRZ
AI#EB100%# % 2 A 7)) B IR THE(E1.00
FEozEREKRE L AN&EBERAurora
Log|st|c Finance R EWB AR ([BIEHE
E]) 2= H100%# 5EE19.6% R
:EEJ\EJF A=+—HBZza#HBEH
BEEGRDNRIEFLHEEE 219.6%M%
TR KA - BT EF BN H
=MIFE37 o

R-ZEZAENA-_+—B AEEEH
EAELKEHK B AR - &ERF ] 4 &85
BE - HEFBHRPEHRERM E36()

RZZZNEFE+A=+—8B BARAF
BEEEZEAHEEtIEZ ARAES
RARREAEFBEAFE AUZEER
= PARK AN BB 1B 51 AR

RFKREZBRBRAE « —TTNFFIHR
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21.

22.

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF
SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP AND COMPANY

On 25 September 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with the vendor, Greater Finance Limited (" Greater Finance”) to
acquire the entire equity interests in China International Energy
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (together with its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as the “China International Group”) for
a consideration of HK$1,500,000,000 (subject to adjustments).
The China International Group is principally investing in oil and
gas business. As at 31 December 2009, a refundable deposit
of HK$150,000,000 was paid to the vendor by the Company.
Details of the acquisition of the China International Group are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated on 22 October
20009.

On 5 November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with the vendor, Maycrown Capital Limited (“Maycrown
Capital”) to acquire the entire equity interests in Sunlight Rise
Limited (together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to as
the “Sunlight Group”) for a consideration of HK$350,860,000.
The Sunlight Group is engaged in the business of generating
and supplying electricity and heat by using coke oven gas
in the PRC. As at 31 December 2009, a refundable deposit
of HK$35,000,000 was paid to the vendor by the Company.
Details of the acquisition of the Sunlight Group are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated on 23 November 2009.

As at 31 December 2009, acquisitions of the China
International Group and the Sunlight Group have not yet been
completed.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
- GROUP

21.

WENBARZRE - A&EH
S RN

RZZBEZNFNAZ+EA AEHH
& J7 Greater Finance Limited ([ Greater
Finance | ) AT s LA LB M China
International Energy Investments (Hong
Kong) Limited (& [ H Mi & 2 7 4t 18 7=
[China International Group )2z & A%
iz £ {8 /71,500,000,0007% 7T (7]
F %) o China International GroupE &
RERABERAEBE - R_ZZNF
+TZA=ZF+—HA - ARAEMEBEAFZHN
150,000,000 7T 2 AR BIZ S - AR KE
China International GroupZ & & & 48
AEIRBAZZSENFTAZFTZHZA
fh o

RZEZNF+—ARARA - AEEHEH
REBEBRAA ([RERE])FI L
HAWERHEAER AR (ERAMB A
AGEAIFMER]) 2 2R Az
R 1B £350,860,000/% 7T ° i B £ B 74
?ﬁé%@ﬂ%%ﬂ%ﬁ%*%ﬁ%&@ﬁﬂ%
B RZEENF+ZA=+—RH &4
ETErﬂaﬁgzﬁﬁooo,ooo/%EZTU@
Re AAWEHMEEZFEHNAR
AAMAZZEENF T+ —AZ+=B2A
{z!ﬁo

RZZEZNEFE+ZA=+—H" %China
International Group X 87 & & 2 Ug B 15
RFERK ©

22. BWHEERFAREE—LTEEH

2009 2008

HK$"000 HK$'000

—EEBAF —EENF

FHR FAT

At 1 January R—H—H 34,253 27,636

Additions during the year FARE 4,465 6,566
Transferred to property, plant and HEEYE BEKF

equipment (note 16(a)) (MfzE16(a)) - (2,002)

Exchange differences X ZH (156) 2,053

At 31 December R+=—B=+—8 38,562 34,253
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22.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
— GROUP (continued)

The breakdown of exploration and evaluation assets is as

22. WHRERFAMEE-FKEE

(4&)

WREFEHEEEZRALT

follows:
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—gEhE —TENF
FET FHET
Exploration license B pe AR 1,365 1,371
Technical feasibility studies BT AT 1T MR 3R 11,064 6,884
Exploratory drilling R 20,424 20,263
Sampling PRAR 5,709 5,735
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 38,562 34,253

Regarding the mining project, the Group is still in the process
of preparing for the application for the mining license of the
mineral resources of the titanium mine. The Group is currently
preparing the feasibility report and the integrated utilisation
plan, and the application for the approval of the delineation
of the mining zone. Upon receipt of the approval of the
delineation of the mining plan, and subject to review of the
status reports and other relevant information on the titanium
mine to be provided by QHFSMI with reference to the expected
amount of return on investment and economic benefit of the
project, the directors of the Company will consider whether the
application of the mining license of the mineral resources in the
titanium mine should be. It is expected that certain amount of
work will still need to be completed before the mining license
will be issued.

SERBEIEB M5 - AEEDES R i
BOREERARMR - NEERFIERE
RAEAITHERS REAMAE AR S
AR B TE BRI R M0 HE XX - UK B B E R R AT
S REHSH T ERREHRNHE
RN E R EMEEERZ - A
K2 EZIA B B A S RORE D RS E
REBERE R RRAREZKEBELRRA
FE B BLEREE R B IR B FB R BR AR AR o AR
NAEH EHELRRERZA B —

ERETHEFTEZK

RERBERERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 23.

The Group normally allows trading credit terms ranging from
30 to 120 days to its established customers. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. Trade debtors with balances aged over
120 days are required to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted. Trade receivables are non-interest-

REH

R 5 R — A

—RETEELBEZEP30E

12 EZEEH -BREFXEREE

R -BRERA120H A L2 EINE SERIEA
fh ARERMIMA#E—FSEEINEENS
RIBEHER - EH&T?%EEIEITE#%\ biss

bearing. Ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, BHEERAHAME » WS B HEK

as at the reporting date, based on the date of recognition of E%EEE(?DB%%%)ZEE MranT
the sale, is as follows:

2009 2008

HK$000 HK$'000

S 11 —RTNF

FHET FHET

1 -90 days 1-90H - 43

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
were as follows:

RUEBZRAZRERBZESHNT

2009 2008

HKS$'000 HK$'000

—EENEF —EENF

FHERT FAT

At 1 January n—HA—H - (2,677)

Disposals of subsidiaries (note 36(h)) HEME QA (Pﬁ 5£36(h)) - 2,357
Reclassified as assets in disposal group BN BALESBESERELE

classified as held for sale (note 26(a)) ZEE(W u£26 (a)) - 320

At 31 December ®R+=—A=+—8 = =

At 31 December 2008 and 2009, there were no trade R-EZENFR_FETENF+_A=+—

receivables that were individually determined to be impaired.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

No trade receivables were past due but not impaired as at 31
December 2009. Ageing analysis of trade receivables that are

B 3 8 B 5 AR TR A (8 B B R RUME

AEBYERZFREBFHERNERR-

RZBEAFE+-_A=+—H YEER
HERRIE Z EUE 5 RRIE - W ARRIE Z

not impaired are as follows: EWE 5 ER1E 2 Rk 5
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—®BNE —ET)\F
FERT FHEIT
Past due of less than 120 days but not @ Hi1208 A MBI KFBE
impaired - 43
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24.

25.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

24.

ANRE RS REMERR
|

Group Company
rE®E KAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EZRE —EENE —EZNE —ZEENF
FERT FHT FEx FHET
Prepayments B RIE 700 97 629 14
Deposits Be 622 563 = -
Other receivables (note) H fth FE W e (KTaE) 71 30,338 = -
1,393 30,998 629 14
Note: Bt AT -

Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2008
were loan receivables of HK$28,931,000 due from an independent
third party. These loan receivables were unsecured, interest-bearing at
prime rate plus 1% per annum and due within one month when the
repayment notice was sent. These loan receivables of HK$28,931,000
and its related interest receivables of HK$2,034,000 were fully impaired
during this year (note 8).

CASH AT BANKS AND IN HAND - GROUP
AND COMPANY

Cash at bank earns interest at the floating rates based on the
daily bank deposits rates.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, included in the cash and
bank balances of the Group were HK$45,000 and HK$1,000
respectively of bank balances denominated in RMB placed with
the banks in the PRC.

25.

RZBENF+_A=+—HB ANEFEEMBER
RERE-—ERKR—EBIE=HZEKRER
28,931,000/ 7T - Z F BN E R R EIE IR E R -
REERENENFRNEFS  WAREFAMN
B —EARERE - %528,931,000/8 T2 FE
W E R & K48/ 22,034,000 T E W F B E R
FRNERERE (KIFES) ©

RITEFRFERE - FKH
)& N

BRSNS BRI RAERF D%
i

RZZEZAER=_ZENF+=A=1+—
A A&EBEZEREEREBITEBBETHRRN
PREZIRITAARME BB ZRITESRD
71 &45,0007% 7T % 1,000/8 JT ©

RERBERERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

26.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE -
GROUP

As described in notes 1 and 11 to the financial statements,
on 4 December 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement such that the entire issued share capital
of Wise Mount was sold to an independent third party for a
consideration of HK$30,000. The disposal of Wise Mount and
its subsidiaries was subsequently completed in February 2009.

On 4 December 2008, the Group entered into a separate sale
and purchase agreement such that the entire issued share
capital of Orient Carpet was sold to an independent third party
for a total amount of HK$19.3 million of which (a) HK$12.2
million was used to set off against the net current liabilities of
HZOCM being a subsidiary of Orient Carpet and assumed by
the independent third party and (b) HK$7.1 million was paid in
cash on completion date. The disposal of Orient Carpet and its
subsidiaries was subsequently completed in March 2009.

On 29 October 2008, another sale and purchase agreement
was entered into between the Group and another independent
third party such that the entire equity interests held by the
Group in one of its subsidiaries in the PRC, namely BJFSMI, was
disposed of for a consideration of HK$10 million. BJFSMI is
principally engaged in mineral dressing and trading of mineral
resources in the PRC. The disposal of BJFSMI was subsequently
completed in January 2009. As the Group continues to be
engaged in exploration of mines, this disposal is not included in
Discontinued Operations.

The directors assessed the carrying amount of the relevant
assets and liabilities of Wise Mount and its subsidiaries,
Orient Carpet and its subsidiaries, and BJFSMI (collectively
referred to as the “Disposal Group”) with reference to the
sale and purchase agreements dated on 4 December 2008
and 29 October 2008 and the net total consideration was

approximately HK$10 million.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

26.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE -
GROUP (continued)

As at 31 December 2008, net assets of the Disposal Group
attributable to the Group amounted to approximately HK$25.4
million, which represented the total net assets of approximately
HK$26.7 million less net assets attributable to non-controlling
interests of approximately HK$1.3 million, and resulted in a loss
on re-measurement to fair value less costs to sell amounting
to approximately HK$15.4 million (note 11). Included in the
HK$15.4 million was the loss of HK$1.7 million attributable
to BJFSMI and Orient Carpet which were not discontinued
operations. Therefore, the amount was included in the results
of continuing operations.

Major classes of assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group as
at 31 December 2008 which were classified as assets held for

26.

sale were as follows:

HEEEPEABIEHEZE
ErGEE-—XEEH#®)

RZZEENF+ZA=+—8 KEEE
MHEESE 2 EEFELNAF25,400,000
7T B #926,700,000/8 7T 2 42 & E F
BERIFEERAEZEEEEFEY
1,300,000/ 7T - BH E it = A FER
4 & AR AN 2 8548 4915,400,00058 7T (Bt &
11) ° 15,400,000/ T B FEIL ZHE R E
T (WIEBCRIEEEER)EGHE
8 1,700,000/ 7T ° A » sZ 5K IEET ASF R
RIS $E -

HESKER-_ZTN\F+_A=1t—H%
BAREHEEEZIREAERBERR
L

Carrying Carrying amount
amount as at | upon being classified
31 December 2008 as held for sale
HK$’000 HK$'000
R-ZBENF RoER
+=A=+-8 Rt B
ZEREE Z BREE
FHET FH T
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment M RE R ERE (HiE16(a) )

(note 16(a)) 26,736 40,508
Prepaid lease payments (note 17) B EERE (H5E17) 14,062 14,062
Inventories FE 7,321 7,321
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIB - i & K A b FE UL RIA

other receivables 10,113 11,751
Trade receivables (note a) FEMWE S BRIE (KMisEa) 1,851 1,851
Cash and bank balances e RRITHET 1,506 1,506

Assets in Disposal Group classified HEEBSEARELECZEE
as held for sale 61,589 76,999
Liabilities 8&
Trade payables (note b) JEE SERE (MisEb) (17,582) (17,582)
Other payables and accruals i FE 5 5RIB R FEET 5K IB (26,725) (26,725)
Other borrowings (note c) H b (fisEc) (5,964) (5,964)
Liabilities in Disposal Group classified PESESEABFELEZAE
as held for sale (50,271) (50,271)
Net assets classified as held for sale DHEARBELEZEEFE 11,318 26,728
RERSKBIZERERAE ¢ — T NFFR

125



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

26. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE -

GROUP (continued)

Notes:
(a) Trade receivables

These were denominated in RMB and generally had credit
terms ranging from 30 to 120 days to established customers.
Ageing analysis of the Disposal Group’s trade receivables, net
of provision, as at 31 December 2008, based on the date of
recognition of the sale, was as follows:

HESE2EABIEHEZE
ErREE-—FAEEH &)

B 5 -

(a)

EWE % REA

REWE SEBEBAARBE —BET
HERIFZEF30E120H2E5(EE
H-REFBEERRAHMEAD ZLESE
BN —_ZEENFE+_A=+—HB2E
I8 S RTE (MBREBE) 2 RE DT
T

2008

HK$'000

—TENF

FET

1 - 90 days 1-90H 1,276
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H 55
121 - 365 days 121 - 365H 520
Over 1 year —FLAE 320
2,171

Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables & : /& U & 5 B T8 sl & 1 45 (320)
1,851

Ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not impaired
was as follows:

WERE B E S RE 2 REeH 10
TS 8

2008
HK$'000
—ETN\F
FET

Neither past due nor impaired AN 380 E T R ORL (B
Past due of less than 120 days but not impaired

Past due of 120 to 365 days but not impaired

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.
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26. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE -
GROUP (continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of customers that had a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believed that
no impairment allowance was necessary in respect of these
balances as there had not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances were still considered fully recoverable.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

(b) Trade payables
Ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Disposal Group

as at 31 December 2008, based on the receipts of goods
purchased, was as follows:

26. HESETEABEHEZE
ErGEE-—XEEH#®)

Bst: (#)

(a)

(b)

EWE 5 RE ()

480 H{E 30 AR 0R0 (8 2 FEMGR IR B2 Tt
AEERARIINREBZEPER-
BEBELR BEERE ARGEE
BERWEEAEE N LB BRI
BARAIBBURE - MBERZEERIE

HUBE B - AN 52 B 30 S 3 7% S5 A B 0
BEREMAS-

ENESKRE

REMBEZEMPZASMED 2
EEER _ZETN\EFT_A=1+—HE
NBSEBZREDITNT

2008
HK$'000
—TEN\F
THT

1 - 90 days 1-90H
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H
121 - 365 days 121 - 365H
Over 1 year —F A E

Included in trade payables were the followings amounts
denominated in a currency other than functional currency of the
entity to which it relates:

1,307
79
14,317
1,879

17,582

e B S RRIA a?ﬁT’ilJMﬁﬁ BRZY
REEBIMN BB ETEZ R

2008
HK$'000
—ETN\EF
FHBT

United States Dollars (“USD") = (== 1)
RMB AR

Trade payables were non-interest-bearing and were normally
settled on 60-day terms.

kg2
6,061

ENESRERRE MBER60R A%
Eo

RFKREZBRBRAT « —TTNFFIHR
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26. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN DISPOSAL 26. HEKRESEARBFEHEZE
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE - EREE-FKE @)
GROUP (continued)

Notes: (Continued) sk : (&)

(c) Other borrowings (c) H g
These were unsecured and bore interest at the fixed rate of HERAERF HETFMNE12%
12% per annum and were repayable with one-month notice by B ARBURAEH — 8 A @ mMEE
the lender. & o

As at 31 December 2009, there were no assets and liabilities RZZEZNF+_A=+—H WEEFE

classified as held for sale. AREEREZEERARE-

27. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP 27. ERESZRE-FXKE
Trade payables were non-interest-bearing and were normally ERNESHEEREERBTENR60H N
settled on 60-day terms. Ho

28. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES 28. EiZxE HMUENRERE

)
AND ACCRUALS at IH
Group Company
rEE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—$¥AE | -TT)\F | —REAE | -—2INA
FTER FHT FE T FAT
Deposits received gliEe - 5,000 - 5,000
Other payables and accruals H A FE 5 FUE K FE 5T RUE 22,559 8,755 2,567 2,779
22,559 13,755 2,567 7,779

Included in other payables and accruals as at 31 December
2009 are the advances from staff of HK$14,931,000 (2008:
Nil) of which amounts of HK$1,014,000 and HK$560,000
bear interests at the fixed rates of 10% and 7% per month
respectively and the remaining advances are interest free. These
advances are unsecured and have no fixed repayment date.
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29. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES - GROUP 29. ER@ERAN-—KEH
An analysis of the total future minimum lease payments under a BEMEMOz ARGEBS A RBER
finance lease and their present values is as follows: HBESNWOT:

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BEEEEMAR BREEEARAE

2008 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

EEEG BRI

Fibx Fax
Payable within one year BAR—FRXZN
Payable in the second year ERE_FXM

Total minimum finance lease RIER AL A

payments

Future finance charges on finance BERNNRZ

lease payments AARBMEER
Total net finance lease payables ENRERAFRER
Less: Amounts classified B FERB BB HIE

as current liabilities

Amounts included under FFAERBEE A
non-current liabilities

The Group entered into a finance lease on a motor vehicle for REEH —WIET L —DABSFZR
a lease period of 5 years. The lease did not have an option to B - ZBOWEE FELRIEZR T
renew or any contingent rental provisions. The balance was de- BEAMIAES B -FHHRERFALE
consolidated as a result of disposal of subsidiaries during the MEBRR MG ARE & -

year.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

30.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND
COMPANY

In November 2007, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (the “"CB1"”) in the principal amount of
HK$365,000,000 as a part of the consideration for the
acquisition of 51% equity interests in Kanson. The CB1 bear
no interest with a maturity date on 4 November 2012 and
are convertible into shares of the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.60 per share (subject to the standard adjustment
clauses relating to share sub-division, share consolidation,
capitalisation issues and rights issues) at any time after the issue
date. Details of the CB1 are set out in the Company’s circular
dated on 15 October 2007.

In July 2008, the Company issued zero coupon convertible
bonds (the “CB3") in the principal amount of HK$580,000,000
as the consideration for the acquisition of the remaining 49%
equity interests in Kanson. The CB3 bear no interest with
maturity date on 2 July 2013 and are convertible into shares
of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.25 per share
(subject to the standard adjustment clauses relating to share
sub-division, share consolidation, capitalisation issues and rights
issues) at any time after the issue date. Details of the CB3 are
set out in the Company’s circular dated on 6 June 2008.

The fair value of the liability components, included in the
CB1 and CB3, was calculated using a market interest rate for
an equivalent non-convertible bond. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in the convertible bond equity reserve in the owners’
equity.
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30.
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RZEELF+—A ARABTEAS
%H365,000,0008 L2 TR B AR EFH
([T ESE —MESR]) EAKRE
Kanson51% /& AN #E 25 2 58 H KB - A] &
REHFE—MUEHFAEEE RZT—Z=F
+— AW B R R AR 3T B B (RS
Mi% AR B ER%0.60/8 T iR A A R AR
7 (BEEBERBRG O BROEH EXEH
17 R R AR A B 2 1R 2E T B ARER) o AT AR
BEHEFE—WEFZFBIARARRAHA
—EE AT RERZERK-

RZZEZTENFLA XRAIETAEALSE
580,000,000 L2 TR E A MR EFH
([ATMmBRESFE=MESH]) ERIE
Kansonf 49 %% A # z 2 L (B - ] # A%
BEHFFE-MEFAELE RZT—=F+
AZ BB E KA AT A B & T A 6
REBRETR2SETHIBRABARRRRG
(BEEBRG DT BRHEH BT
KBRS FE B 2 IR B R R) - I AR &
HFEHEHFZHFRBIERARGEHA=
ZENFANANBZBEBEK-
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND 30. TERRESZ-FAKERELQT
COMPANY (cContinued) (#&)
The CB1 and CB3 recognised in the statement of financial RUERRARANTER 2 TRRES S 4t
position are calculated as follows: BEFLABEERE=HREFTELT:
CB1 B3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R E 3 R E S
E—itES FZHMES w@st
FET FHET FET
Face value of convertible BERTARKRES ZCEE
bonds issued 365,000 580,000 945,000
Proceeds of issue (fair value BT AR
on initial recognition) (BRERZATHE) 365,467 363,506 728,973
Equity component AR D (189,421) (103,438) (292,859)
Liability component BEH» 176,046 260,068 436,114
Movement of liability component BEREH
Movement of liability component for the years ended 31 REBEZEZZZNEFR-_ZFZENF+=A
December 2009 and 2008 is as follows: =t+—BIEFEZzEEHD>ESHUT
2009
—gEnE
CB1 CB3 Total
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
CE- 93¢ AR fE 5
F—itES FZHMES st
FTER FTER FET
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZENF—HA—H 88,414 104,248 192,662
Exercise of the convertible bonds 171 A] # % & (73,243) (106,537) (179,780)
Imputed interest expenses HERNSER (M:E7)
(note 7) 3,830 2,567 6,397
At 31 December 2009 i = AR
+—-—HA=+—H 19,001 278 19,279
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND 30, AIERESF -FEEREDQT
COMPANY (continued) (#)
Movement of liability component (Continued) EEMsEE (&)
2008
—ETNF
CB1 CB3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT 5 AT AR 1 3%
E—HES E=HES @t
Tt T F#T
At 1 January 2008 R-EENF—A—H 139,671 - 139,671
Liability component on initial BRABRAZBEHS
recognition 260,068 260,068
Exercise of the convertible bonds 17 {f A #&2 i% (& % (64,276) (164,685) (228,961)
Imputed interest expenses HENMEBR (WE7)
(note 7) 13,019 8,865 21,884
At 31 December 2008 RZZZNF
+=-—A=+—H 88,414 104,248 192,662
Movement of equity component KRB EH
Movement of equity component for the years ended 31 REBEZZZNFRZZEZNF+ A
December 2009 and 2008 is as follows: Zt+—HALFE2HEZELEBHMT
2009
—BENE
CB1 CB3 Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR % TR %
EHES EoHES @t
FH FH FH
At 1 January 2009 R-ZZEZENEFE—-—HA—HA 81,872 38,500 120,372
Issue of shares on conversion A 5 IR B B 1T AR (D (66,023) (38,445) (104,468)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNEF
+=—A=+—8 15,849 55 15,904
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

30.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS — GROUP AND

30. TERRESZ-FAKERELQT

COMPANY (continued) (4&)
Movement of equity component (Continued) Eadoses &)
2008
—ET)N\E
CB1 B3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR E S AR ES
E—HESH E=HES “BEt
FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2008 RZZEENF—HA—H 147,261 - 147,261
Equity component on initial BRER 2 HHBD
recognition - 103,438 103,438
Issue of shares on conversion P H AR BT I 9 (65,389) (64,938) (130,327)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZNF
+=—A=+—H 81,872 38,500 120,372

The fair value of the liability components of CB1 and CB3 at the
dates of issue amounted to approximately HK$176 million and
HK$260 million respectively.

Interest expense on the bonds is calculated using the effective
interest method by applying interest rate of 15.7% and
17.4% per annum to the liability components of CB1 and CB3
respectively.

RETH AJRRESFE —HEHFRATR
BEFE-#HEFABEBI 2 AFESD
Rl #7/4176,000,0007% 7T 5 260,000,000/%

dl 225

BHZF BB A TR E B R R A NEF R
15.7% K 17.4% 5D B gh AT iR E 5 5 — it
BERAMRESE=HELFABID T
=

RERIBEBRERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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30.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

During the year, 209,000,000 (2008: 210,000,000) and
3,543,000 (2008: Nil) new ordinary shares in aggregate were
issued, at the conversion price of HK$0.60 and HK$0.508 (as
adjusted) per share respectively, to the bond holders upon the
conversion of the CB1. The conversion price was adjusted to
HK$0.508 as a result of the open offer. Details of the result of
open offer and the adjustment to the conversion price of the
convertible bonds are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated on 7 October 2009. As a result, there was an increase
in share capital and share premium of HK$2,125,000 (2008:
HK$2,100,000) (note 32(a)) and HK$137,140,000 (2008:
HK$127,565,000) respectively.

During the year, 862,000,000 (2008: 1,456,000,000) new
ordinary shares in aggregate were issued, at the conversion
price of HK$0.25 per share, to the bond holders upon the
conversion of the CB3. As a result, there was an increase in
share capital and share premium of HK$8,620,000 (2008:
HK$14,560,000) (note 32(b)) and HK$136,361,000 (2008:
HK$215,063,000) respectively. As a result of the open offer, the
conversion price was adjusted to HK$0.212.

Subsequent to the reporting date, another 3,543,000 new
ordinary shares were issued to the bond holders upon the
conversion of CB1. As a result, there was a further increase
in share capital and share premium of HK$35,000 and
HK$2,049,000 respectively. Accordingly, the liability component
and the equity component of CB1 were decreased by
HK$1,140,000 and HK$944,000 respectively. These conversions
have not yet been reflected in the financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2009.
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30.

RRES -AEERAQT
(%)

FR-ARARATBRREFE—HES
ETHBED IR EREBEOE T
ROSO8E T (KB ) MELFIFAE AR
174 #£209,000,000 (ZEZE N\ F:
210,000,000/% ) %3,543,0000% ( ===
NEF )L BRk - AMEERQFEEMm
TR H0.5088 0 - AFBE 2 AR R AR
REHz ABRERAE ZFBHNARATH
HMA—TTNFTALAZA M ALt
H AR A K j 0 &= (8 5 51 1 512,125,000
7T (ZZFZ)\4F 2,100,000 7T) (KE
32(a) ) 137,140,000 i 7T ( Z 2T )\ F:
127,565,000/ 7T ) °

FA-ARARABRRESFE=—HESFE
TRBEBIRERNIRB0.25B THEHFE
A A3 174 $£862,000,0000% ( —EZE N
£ :1,456,000,0000% ) % & i/ A% o B 1t
H PR R j 15 % 8 9 BI14E Hn8,620,0007%
7T (=Z T )\ 4:14,560,000/8 70) (M &E
32(b) ) 136,361,000 BT ( — 2T )\ 4
215,063,000 70) cHR AR EE L
EWFAEB02128TT

J‘i“&iEHH1§'$"ﬂEAT?ﬁH§E%‘%“
—MEHFETHBRERNESFEB AEIN
¥%173,543, oooﬂx%ﬁ CE IR BUE AR A
K AR 1 4 18 9 Bl 8 SN 8 hn35,0007% 7T K&
2,049,000/ Lo ALt AT MR EH E —
#HESFzABEISD REREH H R
1,140,000/ 7T 2 944,000/8 T ° % & X #
VESABE_ZETAFt+_A=1+—8
WEFEZHBRE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ—ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

31.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - GROUP AND
COMPANY

At the reporting date, unrecognised deferred tax assets are

31.

EEBAEE -AEERELD

Gl

RBERH RERREHBEEENAT

follows:
Group Company
TEE N
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—®EnE | -TT\F | —®BAE | -T3)\%
FERT FHET FTEx FET
Tax losses IR A 776 65,546 - -
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the I AL LA A 1B B R R R TR IR A

above tax losses as these were incurred by the companies that
have been loss-making for some time.

As at 31 December 2008, an unrecognised tax loss arising from
HZOCM of HK$38,598,000 would expire as follows. There
was no such tax loss during the year as the balance was de-
consolidated as a result of disposals of subsidiaries during the

ARBERERIACER-BREB AR

FRES -

RZBEZENF+ZA=+—H E£X£BE
JN B 75 Hb B 2 38,598 ooo,%nZﬂEaﬁR
TEBEER TR EE - iﬁmﬂ&t#
TRIEEE - ,uﬁ%lﬁAiﬁwEMﬂ*

year. All other unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward DEF AR EETE - A H AL R TER fﬁlﬁﬁ
indefinitely. TE—I%I?E,HEND

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EENE —ET)NEF

FET FHET

2009 —ZETNF - 9,667

2010 —Z-TF - 6,117

2011 —FT—%F - 12,348

2012 —E—_% - 6,723

2013 —ET—=% - 3,743

- 38,598

At 31 December 2009, there is no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2008: Nil).

RZBZNF+_A=+—H UEEKX
ﬁiﬁgu/u Fkﬂiﬂlﬁg\fﬁ (—%E‘E‘E

RFKREZRBERAT « —F

N\E &) ©

TILE Fil
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. BR&
2009 2008
—sEnF —TE)F
Number of Number of
share share
Notes ‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
RAEE B fn g
Bt TR FET F ik FHT
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FIREE.01ETY
TEk 20,000,000 200,000 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRABRA
At 1 January, ordinary shares of R—A—B SREE
HK$0.01 each 0018 Tz EBmE 3,024,720 30,247 1,358,720 13,587
Exercise of convertible bonds and IRARRES R
issue of shares BRG (a),(b) 1,074,543 10,745 1,666,000 16,660
Shares issued in August 2009 RZZEZENFNA
BT 2 R (0) 809,280 8,093 - -
Shares issued in October 2009 RZZETNFTA
BIT 2R (d) 2,452,500 24,525 - -
At 31 December, ordinary sharesof R+—-A=+—8"
HK$0.01 each BRAEE.0IBITZ
EiE 7,361,043 73,610 3,024,720 30,247
Notes: B 5 -
(a) During the year, 209,000,000 (2008: 210,000,000) and (a FRARAARARKRESE —HLE

3,543,000 (2008: Nil) new ordinary shares in aggregate were
issued, at the conversion price of HK$0.60 and HK$0.508 (as
adjusted) per share respectively, to the bond holders upon the
conversion of the CB1 (note 30). As a result, there was an
increase in share capital and share premium of HK$2,125,000
(2008: HK$2,100,000) and HK$137,140,000 (2008:
HK$127,565,000) respectively.

During the year, 862,000,000 (2008: 1,456,000,000) new
ordinary shares in aggregate were issued, at the conversion
price of HK$0.25 per share, to the bond holders upon the
conversion of the CB3 (note 30). As a result, there was an
increase in share capital and share premium of HK$8,620,000
(2008: HK$14,560,000) and HK$136,361,000 (2008:
HK$215,063,000) respectively.
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(b)

FETHIBE D BIZE M K #(E0.60
T K%0.5088 T (KAE)REFF
A AEITA $£209,000,0008% (=&
= )\ £ :210,000,0000% ) % 3,543,000
B(ZEENF &)L @R (M
30) cA B ERA KK G % E D 5
#iN2,125,0008 T (=TT )\ F:
2,100,000 7£) & 137,140,000 7T
(ZZTZ)\4: 127,565,000/ 7T ) °

FRARARAIRRESFE=BESH
HEITHRRRERIRE0.258 TMRE
F15 A AN1T 4 $£862,000,0008% (=
TF )\ 4 : 1,456,000,0008% ) ¥ & i@ A%
(MI5E30) - At EBR ARG EED
A1l % 1N8,620,000/ T (=TT )\ F :

14,560,000/ 7T ) & 136,361,000/% 7T

—Z T \4:215,063,000/ 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZTTNF+_A=+T—HILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

(d)

On 6 August 2009 and 10 August 2009, the Company
entered into a placement agreement and a supplemental
agreement respectively with Mayfair Securities Limited
(“Mayfair Securities”) as placing agent, pursuant to which an
aggregate of 809,280,000 new ordinary shares were placed by
Mayfair Securities on behalf of the Company, at the price of
HK$0.137 per placing share with the independent investors.
As a result, the Company issued 809,280,000 new ordinary
shares at HK$0.137 per share on 20 August 2009. As a result,
there was an increase in share capital and share premium of
HK$8,093,000 and HK$102,779,000 respectively. Details of the
placing are set out in the Company’s announcements dated on
7 August, 10 August and 20 August 2009.

On 25 August 2009, the Company entered into an underwriting
agreement with Kingston Securities Limited relating to the
open offer at the subscription price of HK$0.08 per offer
share to its shareholders on the basis of one offer share for
every two shares of the Company recorded on the register of
members of the Company on 15 September 2009. As a result,
the Company issued 2,452,500,000 new ordinary shares at
HK$0.08 per share in October 2009. As a result, there was an
increase in share capital and share premium of HK$24,525,000
and HK$171,675,000 respectively. Details of the open offer are
set out in the Company's announcements dated on 26 August
2009 and 7 October 2009 and the prospectus dated on 16
September 2009.

All issued new ordinary shares in 2008 and 2009 rank pari passu with

other shares in issue in all respect.

32. BRA& (@)

BfsE: ()

(0

(d)

FER=

RZZZNFNAXNBR_ZTAEF
NA+HB AREEEEREEEE
HERAR ([EBEH]) DRIFTL—
NEERE R —HE T BE Bk
ERBFLHFREARAUNGRESKND
0137 T2 ERMBUREELRES
$£809,280,0008% ¥7 ¥ i@ A& - E it - 7
ZETNFENAZTRH ARARNUER
0.1377# 7T 2 {8 #% % 7809,280,000/%
L@ Bt ERARBROEED
71/3% 518,093,000/ 7T }2. 102,779,000
T EFBEHNAARARAZTT
hENALBE - NA+BERNAZ=ZTH
Z Ao

RZZEZAFENAZ+HAB ARRHE
SHEBLBRABDNBRRR =TT
FRATHEBARRARREEM 2508k
BHEMBREARRRNHER —REE
Bz EE ERBETREERHG
0.08B TMERRARBEERMDETL
— M EHERBHE Bl ARAR =TT
HE+ AL EFR0.088 T 2 BIRET
2,452,500,0000% 31 & i@ A% - B 1t - EAR
R KRR 15 5% (B 9 Bl 48 1124,525,0004
7L K& 171,675,0008 7T - R % & 2 5F
BHRAABDNBHA-ZTZTNAFE/NA
T RBRZZTAF+AEBZAMH
URkBHE-_ZTTAFAATBZE

fxZ=i2

EENFR_BENFRITZINER

BRESTHERMEETRNZTARS EE -

RFKRERBRAT « —TT

=L F il
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZ —ZZTNF+_A=1T—HBILFE

33. RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein during the year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The share premium account includes

(i) the difference between the combined net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 2001, over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefore;

(ii) the premium arising from the capitalisation issue
in the previous years;

(i) issue of shares of the Company at a premium net
of the transaction costs associated with the issue
of shares; and

(iv) amount transferred from other equity reserves

upon exercise of share option and conversion of
convertible bond.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZTTNF+_A=+T—RHILFE

33. RESERVES (continued) 33. #E& @)
(b) Company (b) &AFH
Convertible
Share Capital bond equity Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AMRRES
B EE BRARGE BEfE S “@Et
FET AT FAET FET FHET
At 1 January 2008 RZZZENF—H—H 560,420 140,667 147,261 (340,911) 507,437
Issue of convertible bonds ~ E4T A & 5
(note 30) (Pz£30) - - 103,438 - 103,438
Issue of shares on conversion 1 3 ¥ AT ¥ I 565
of convertible bonds BITRG (H3E32()
(notes 32(a) and (b)) (b)) 342,628 - (130,327) - 212,301
Net loss for the year KEREBETE N - - (54,670) (54,670)

At 31 December 2008 and A =ZTZ\F

1 January 2009 +ZA=+—-BRk
“TZNF—-A—H 903,048 140,667 120,372 (395,581) 768,506
Issue of shares BT (B13E32(0)
(notes 32(c) and (d)) R(d)) 274,454 - - - 274,454
Issue of shares on conversion 1 3,4 A # i 5 % B
of convertible bonds IR
(notes 32(a) and (b)) (M E32(a) R (b)) 273,501 - (104,468) - 169,033
Net loss for the year AEEBHEFE - - - (669,839) (669,839)

At 31 December 2009 R-ZBZhE

+=ZHA=+-8 1,451,003 140,667 15,904 (1,065,420) 542,154
Details of the share premium account of the Company AR B0 Ja (B BR S 1B E S s Bt
are set out in note 33(a) above. #F33(a) °
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34.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has a share option scheme, which was adopted
on 6 June 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date (the “Scheme”),
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, independent non-executive directors,
other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, any person or entity
that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group and any non-controlling shareholder in
the Company’s subsidiaries.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is equivalent to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting passed on 8
December 2009, the general scheme limit of the Company's
share option scheme has been reset to 736,104,330 shares,
representing 10% of the Company’s issued share capital on
the date of meeting, with the passing of ordinary resolution,
which allowing the Company to grant further options carrying
the rights to subscribe for a maximum of 736,104,330 shares.
As at the date of the approval of these financial statements, no
option has been granted pursuant to the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1%, of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors, in addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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34.

35.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date
of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of:

(a) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;

(b) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There was no share option granted or exercised in 2009 and
2008. As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group has no
outstanding share option.

Subsequent to the reporting date and up to the date of the
approval of these financial statements, no additional share
options were granted.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Acquisition of additional interests in Kanson

As described in notes 19 and 30 to the financial statements,
on 8 April 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the acquisition of the remaining 49% equity
interests in Kanson from Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret.

34.

35.

Ut AER2@#EE &)

BRHOBERE 2 2@ AR R D BREEEZ
Hiat28H MR =X ATRARL U
RAEMBTZHERE -ARE ZBEE
ZITEMBERRE HREERERE
EEARFES MEmA BN FEREZ
RHBARE R SR 0FRAEERZ A
(AP EHEERE)

BB TEEREERE  ERBER
T2 BmE

(@) RERRLBEEZ BEARRRK
MRB R 2 (B

(b) ARFROREERDBEREEZSE
B AT AR 5 BR3P 2 1T
WmE: &

() Bt 2 1A °

BRI B TR A AR B BR
RELEREZHER -

RIZZENFR-_ZTZN\FIERHEEK
TEERE-R-ZZNFR_ZTNF
TZA=1+—B AKEAEHRTEZ
FERHE

RIEHRBR B EZSV IS RERIER
B - MR (el BB AN A -
EEEHt

U B Kanson 2 58 SM fE 25

B RS ER AR MT 19 R 30FT I R=ZFZ N
FMANB  AEEFL—DEE k-

A R4 £ W Kanson T 2 49% i
Ao

RERIBEBRERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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Y SR P
W& KansonZ BEIMER (4)

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 35.

Acquisition of additional interests in Kanson
(Continued)

W BEFERBEZFBNOT:

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FAR
Purchase consideration: BERE:

— Fair value of CB3 issued (note 30) —BBRTIBRERESFE=MNEF2AFE
(Mi&%30) 363,506
Total purchase consideration EEANRE 363,506
Carrying value of net assets acquired WiEz BEFEZEEE (25,928)
Goodwill (note 19) = (MEE19) 337,578

According to the sale and purchase agreements dated on 8
July 2007 and 8 April 2008, another zero-coupon convertible
bonds with face value of HK$400,000,000 (the “CB2") and
HK$380,780,000 (the “CB4") will be issued on the fifth
business day following the date of receipt of mining license
in respect of the underlying mine. The CB2 and CB4 are
convertible into shares of the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.60 and HK$0.25 per share respectively. As at 31
December 2008 and 2009, Kanson and its subsidiaries were still
in the progress of obtaining the mining license. Thus the CB2
and CB4 have not been issued and have not been included in
the purchase consideration above.

There was no business combination occurred during the year.

142 Xian Yuen Titanium Resources Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2009

BEBHSFA-_ZTEELFELANARS
SENFHANBZEE WS BED
/400,000,000 7T ([FI R E 5% —#t
&% |) }%380,780,0005% 7T ([ ] pL (& %
FOMESRF 2R AREBRESER
BEEEER 2AREREBRZERRE
EBEART -ABRREFE-_MEFRA
BRESEOMES DRI R L IRETR
0.6078 7L %0.25B T AR R A IRMD °
RZZEENER=_ZZAF+=_A=1+—
B - B A Kanson M E M /& A Rl 3 7E FR 55 BX
SHRAFER Bt RRESFE _IES
Ko Al 2 % (& 5 55 MO L& 5 5 R 39T 0 TRk
FTAEXFT BERE-

FRARRALBEETAELAE G-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(a)

BJFSMI

As mentioned in note 5 to the financial statements, on
29 October 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement such that the entire issued share
capital of BJFSMI was sold to an independent third party
for a consideration of HK$10,000,000. The disposal was
subsequently completed on 16 January 2009. Particulars

36. HEWERQR

BE—_ZEAFt+-A=1+—H
ILFE

(@) UARFR

40 B 75 3R 3% B RES P - AN £ [ R
—EENE+AZ+TNABETY—1H
BEEW#H B ERREZEE
BETRAEHETF BB ILE=
77 KR {E /10,000,000 7T o i &
HER -_ZEZNF—A+B%

of the disposal transaction are as follows: B BER S ZEFIBWRT
2009
HK$'000
—EAF
FET
Net assets disposed of: HECEEFE:
Prepayments, deposits and TETFRIE « k& R E b FEUGRIR
other receivables 10,027
Cash and cash equivalents RekHFeZHEEEB 160
Deposits received, other payables and B RS - B A FEA B R E ST IR
accruals (187)
10,000
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal  Hi & B [E 5, % 45 # [@] (668)
9,332
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 5) HENBE ARz (MsEs5) 668
Total consideration wRE 10,000
Satisfied by cash LAZR € 3% A 10,000

RERIBEBRERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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36. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Continued)

(b)

Wise Mount and its subsidiaries

On 4 December 2008, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement such that the entire issued
share capital of Wise Mount was sold to an independent
third party for a consideration of HK$30,000. The
disposal of Wise Mount and its subsidiaries, namely Win
Alliance and Tang Shan Win Alliance was subsequently
completed on 23 February 2009. Particulars of the

disposal transaction are as follows:

36. HEKWBLQT (&)

BE-ZFAF+=-A=1—H
IEEE @)

(b)

Hig R AHE A A

REBR-ZZENF+ZAEBE]
Y EERE B SErE
HEETRABHE T BB IR
=7 R{EAE30,0008 L HER
BEREMBATBERELBED
RZZETZANF-_AZ+T=HZTK-

HERSZFFBEMT :

2009
HK$'000
—sEnE
FHERT
Net assets disposed of: HECEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 6,281
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE 8,640
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEIHEE 6
Trade payables JERTE SIRIA (11,521)
Amount due from a non-controlling FE W IE 45 AR AR 3R K18
shareholder (1,288)
Deposits received, other payables and BURE - B BRI
accruals K EET A (2,088)
30
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries LEWBARZEE -
Total consideration BRE 30
Satisfied by cash AR & 2 1 30
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. HEKB QT (&)

BE-ZFAF+=-A=1—H
IEFE )

36. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Continued)

(©) Orient Carpet and its subsidiary () RIMBEREMNBALA

40 B 75 3R 2R B RESPT A AN SR @R
ZETNFF+ZAWAEIZ
BEmE B RAMBZEE
BEETRABEHET —RBILE

As mentioned in note 5 to the financial statements, on
4 December 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement such that the entire issued share
capital of Orient Carpet was sold to an independent

third party for a consideration of HK$19.3 million of
which (a) HK$12.2 million was used to set off against
the net current liabilities of HZOCM being a subsidiary
of Orient Carpet and assumed by the independent
third party and (b) HK$7.1 million was paid in cash
on completion date. The disposal of Orient Carpet
and its subsidiary, namely HZOCM was subsequently

completed on 20 March 2009. Particulars of the disposal

transaction are as follows:

=7 K& 4A19,300,0008 T H
fi(a) 12,200,000/ 7T 2 F FA K 84
BINE B (BEF B2 W
BRa) 2 RBAGEFRE (LB
FE=ZHBREZERE)  kb)
7,100,000 L E R EAK B AR &
T -HERFHBEENB AR
BINRFHBEEER 2T NF
ZAZ+HZTK - HEXRSZHIF

LU
2009
HK$'000
—EEBAF
FET
Net assets disposed of: LHECEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 20,455
Prepaid lease payments A& KIB 5,422
Prepayments, deposits and ERNRIE -ZE Rk
other receivables H h fE W 5RIB 86
Inventories F& 7,321
Trade receivables FEWE 58RI 1,851
Cash and cash equivalents RekHFeEEERB 294
Trade payables B2 SERE (6,061)
Deposits received, other payables and iR B EARIE R
accruals FEET IR (22,005)
7,363
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal & BF[E X &5 o (8.604)
(1,241)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz e (MFEsR11)
(notes 5 and 11) 8,341
Total consideration BRE 7,100
Satisfied by cash LAER € 32 7,100

RERIBEBRERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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36. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(Continued)

(d) Jackley China and its subsidiaries

36. HEKWBLQT (&)

BE-ZFAF+=-A=1—H
IEEE @)

(d)

As mentioned in note 5 to the financial statements,
on 30 April 2009, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement such that the entire issued share
capital of Jackley China was sold to an independent
third party for a cash consideration of HK$1. The
disposal of Jackley China and its subsidiaries, namely

Orient Finance HK, Charvix Concrete Company Limited,
Jackley Macao Commercial Offshore Limited and Jackley
Carpet Limited was completed on the same date.
Particulars of the disposal transaction are as follows:

Jackley China R E K1/8 2 &

LN BA 7 SRR M RS AT A A EE R
—TEEAFENA=ZFTHBEYI %
BB e B Jackley Chinaz
E2HEHTRAELETFT 28
NE=H - BReRERIET LG
Jackley China X Efi@E R B EE R
Fo  BEEMABRAR - XH
MR EEERBERAR LB
RINEARARNREATRK - HE
R 2FHBUWT

2009
HK$ 000
—EERF
FERT
Net liabilities disposed of: HEZAEFE:

Deposits received, other payables and BUiE S - H At FE R ROIE K
accruals JEEH IR (2)
()
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 5) HEMB ARz W (M) 2
Total consideration BRE =
Satisfied by cash AER @ =
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36. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. LHEMERT (a)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZEZENAF+=-A=+—H
(Continued) EE (&)
(e) 626 Limited and its subsidiary (e) G6266RAARENEL A

As mentioned in note 5 to the financial statements,
on 30 April 2009, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement such that the entire issued share
capital of 626 Limited was sold to an independent
third party for a consideration of HK$1. The disposal
of 626 Limited and its subsidiary, namely HKFSMID was
completed on 4 May 2009. Particulars of the disposal

40 B 75 3R 3% B RES P - AN £ [ R
—EEHENA=+HIYHE
EWE B 626BRAFIZE
HMEBRTRABHETFT —RBUSE
=7 RERMBIT -LE26HR
RAREWB AR ESHRREERH
BER_ZETNFRAWBATER

transaction are as follows: HEXGZFBERT:
2009
HK$'000
—EEBAF
FET
Net liabilities disposed of: HECEEFE:
Deposits received, other payables and B IR E - B A BRI R EFTFKIB
accruals (33)
(33)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 5) BB A E Y (FsEs) 33
Total consideration BRE =
Satisfied by cash LARR € 35 =

RFKREZBRBRAE « —TTNFFIR
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36. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. LEKB QTR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Continued)

(f) AIEL and its subsidiaries

As mentioned in note 8 to the financial statements,
on 21 August 2009, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement such that the entire issued share
capital of AIEL was sold to an independent third party
for a consideration of HK$2,000,000. The disposal of
AIEL and its subsidiaries, namely Wellspark Holdings
Limited and Go On was completed on the same date.
Particulars of the disposal transaction are as follows:

BE-ZFAF+=-A=1—H
IEEE @)

(f)

AIELR ZER B & &

70 BA 75 $R 2% MY RESET il - AN & B R
—ZEENFENAZ+—RII—H
BEWZ HIAELZ 23 E 3%
ARABEHETF—BBILE=F"
KB %2,000,0008 7T ° HE AIELK
HEBARREERFRAR LS
ZRRBEK - RERSZFBEW
T

2009
HK$'000
S
FHERT
Net assets disposed of: HECEEFE:

Property, plant and equipment (note 16(a)) ¥ % - Bi&E M &E (H3E16(a)) 85
Available-for-sale financial assets (note 20)  AJ {ft H & Ef #5 & & (Ff5£20) 12,091
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JBftFUE ~ # & I H th & I F0 18 487
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEFEIEE 6
Finance lease payables EARERD (66)

Deposits received, other payables and Bl - B MR RIER
accruals JE&H IR (69)
12,534
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEWB AR EE (KEES) (10,534)
Total consideration HRE 2,000
Satisfied by cash IAER @ 2 A 2,000
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36. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMBATR &)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE-_ZE/N\E+=-A=t+—8H
LtEE
(9) Kaicheng (9) =
As mentioned in note 5 to the financial statements, on MBS SRR M SR R =T F
6 March 2008, the Group disposed of 75.5% equity NE=ZARA KAEBEUKENE
interests in Kaicheng for a consideration of HK$1. TTHEERENRT5. 5% ARELS -
Particulars of the disposal transaction were as follows: HEXRSZFBET
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FET
Net liabilities disposed of: HEZaEFE:
Amount due to a non-controlling FEAT FE IR AR AR SRR IA
shareholder (774)
Deposits received, other payables and B iR ® - H b FE T 3RIE K FE T 5B
accruals (68)
(842)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 5) HEM B A E WS (K EES) 842
Total consideration HBRE =

Satisfied by cash AR & 1~ _
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36. HEKWBLQT (&)
BEz-_ZEENFE+=-HA=+—H

36. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2008

(Continued) WFE (&)
(h) IcC (h) 157 % 1t B

As mentioned in note 5 to the financial statements,
on 30 May 2008, the Group disposed of 51% equity
interests in ICC for a consideration of HK$200,000.
Particulars of the disposal transaction were as follows:

M RR TS R =FF
NERA=Z+TH KAEBMUKRE
200,000/ 7T i & B BR B 51 % AR
RiEm - HERSHZHBRT:

2008
HK$'000
—TENF
FHET
Net liabilities disposed of: HEZaEBEFE:
Property, plant and equipment (note 16 (a)) #1% - Bi&E Nk &E (H3E16(a)) 30
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JBfFUE ~ # & I H th & I 3018 4,261
Inventories FE 273
Trade receivables FEUE 5 R1A 7,663
Provision for impairment of trade FEUNE 5 AR B R (E R
receivables (note 23) (BfsE23) (2,357)
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEFRFHEES 763
Amount due from a non-controlling JE U IE 45 AR I 3R R 1B
shareholder 1,370
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR AR R 217
Trade payables ERE SRIE (2,300)
Deposits received, other payables and B WIR & - E b FE T 5RIB R E AT 5RIE
accruals (15,158)
(5,238)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 5) o & BT B8 2 B 2 Weas (B RES) 5,438
Total consideration HRE 200
Satisfied by cash IAER & 1 200
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36.

37.

DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and
2009

36.

HEKB QR (&)

EZRENFR-ZENF
TZA=1+T—HLEFE

(i) An analysis of the net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash (i) FRAHE LMBARZHe IR
equivalents in respect of the disposals of the above ©EEBEZRA (RL)FE
subsidiaries is as follows: U ENE

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
—senE —eENE
FEx FET
Total consideration in cash BEREBLSE 19,130 200
Cash at bank and in hand HEZRITEFRFHERS
disposed of (466) (763)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) in FRALEWNBRRI RS
respect of the disposals of A CR) #5
subsidiaries 18,664 (563)
DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. RIEEHENEATR

As mentioned in note 20, on 10 March 2008, the Company
and certain of its subsidiaries, Capital Gain, a company in
which Mr. Pang has beneficial interests, and Mr. Pang entered
into an agreement such that, to assume the Group's obligation
to contribute approximately US$4,070,000 (HK$31,725,000
equivalent) to the registered capital of Hebei Da Sheng, 51%
previously owned by the Group, the Group agreed to allot and
issue 804 ordinary shares of Aurora Logistic Finance, previously
a 100% subsidiary of the Company, of US$1.00 each to Capital
Gain. As a result, the Company’s interest in Aurora Logistic
Finance and its subsidiaries (i.e. the Deemed Disposal Group)
was diluted from 100% to 19.6%.

MK sE20fTI - R EENE=A+H "
ARRREETHBARREAEHEE
#AE S 2 A B Capital Gaink ¥ £ 5T
— AW BB I 0 Capital GainlA B A& E AR
EEETIL R (RNEE ZATHEES1 %
2 N E]) Z M E AN H & £)4,070,0003%
7t (#8555 7131,725,0008 ) 2 & E » A
&= @ [& & M) Capital Gainfic 3% & 217804 0%
Aurora Logistic Finance (A2 & Z B &
100% s 2 B R &) BAREE1.005 7T
2B o AL - A2 Bl Aurora Logistic
Finance X K@ A A (AMRIEL E5£E)
ZHERE100%EEZE19.6% ©

RFKREZBRBRAE « —TTNFFIR
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37. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. RIELEWB LR (&)
(Continued)
2008
—ETNEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Net assets owned by the Group prior BRIELERASERE CEEFE
to the deemed disposal

Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE
(note 16(a)) (HMtzE16(a)) 4,057
Prepayments, deposits and other FERNRIE- -ZE R
receivables Hfh fE YR8 59,344
Cash at banks and in hand WITHEIFRFHEERES 9,221
Deposits received, other payables and Bz & ~ B A B RIE K&
accruals FE ST IR (727)
Amounts due to non-controlling JE A FE 45 AR IR R SR8
shareholders (40,787)
Non-controlling interests eI IR AR A (1,148)
29,966
Release of exchange reserve upon WIEHERER#HRED
deemed disposal (6,848)
23,118
Interests owned by the Group WIELERAEEER 2B
after the deemed disposal
Property, plant and equipment M BERERE (HiEi16())
(note 16(a)) 4,057
Prepayments, deposits and FERFIE - 12e REMEWRKIA
other receivables 59,344
Cash at banks and in hand RITEGRFERS 9,221
Deposits received, other payables and B iR - Hith BT FIE &
accruals FEET IR (721)
Amounts due to non-controlling JE A JE 458 AR AR R SR8
shareholders (40,787)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR AR R M (1,148)
Net assets owned by the Group prior RIEHENASERE cEESE
to deemed disposal 29,966
Capital injection for the 804 ordinary Capital GainBt804/% & AR 1 H
shares by Capital Gain EREE 31,725
61,691
Equity interests held by the Group BIEHERAEEEE 2
(19.6%) after the deemed disposal f% AN HE 22 (19.6%) 12,091
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries 8 {1 & i B A 7 ~ &5 8
(note 8) (K 7E8) 11,027
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37.

38.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

37.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of the Deemed Disposal Group was as

RIELEHNB QT (&)

BRHERFLEEE RS RREEE
BB ZmREFELTMT

follows:

2008
HK$'000
—ZENF
FH T
Total consideration @R (E -
Cash at bank and in hand disposed of HEZRITHEFRFHERS (9,221)

Net cash outflows in respect of the deemed EEABRIEHEWNB AR 2R &ML F5E
disposal of subsidiaries (9,221)

There was no deemed disposal of subsidiaries during the year.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 38.

At 31 December 2009, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease falling
due as follows:

FRL MBI ENBAR
REBENERE
R-FFAFT-A=+—0 AEER

NEFERAEmZ TR AR S 2 R
T ADEENFRARMT

2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

—eEnF —TE)F

FHERT FHET

Within one year —F RN 1,355 6,278
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFRF (REEEMSE) 1,875 4,950
3,230 11,228

The Group leased certain leasehold land and buildings under
operating leases. The leases ran for an initial period of two to
three years, with an option to renew the lease and renegotiate
the terms at expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed between
the Group and respective landlords/lessors. None of the leases
included contingent rentals.

The Company did not have any significant lease commitments
as at 31 December 2008 and 2009.

AEERBEERANERETHEL R
BF - ZEZHONTREAME=F AN
IMBERAEEEREEE HEARR
BE 2 AR EEE N ERTHOMRR %
SHANTeRAEe-

ARAR_ZEZENEFER_FTTAFL+=A
=+ — B EE R EARTELAIE-

RERIBEBRERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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39.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2009, the Group entered into agreements
with various parties in relation to exploration and evaluation
expenditures to be capitalised. As at 31 December 2009,
the total contracted amount was HK$1,048,000 (2008:
HK$1,950,000).

As mentioned in note 21 to the financial statements, on 25
September 2009, the Group entered into an agreement with
the vendor, Greater Finance, to acquire the entire equity
interests in the China International Group for a consideration
of HK$1,500,000,000 (subject to the adjustments). The China
International Group is principally investing in oil and gas
business. As at 31 December 2009, the refundable deposits of
HK$150,000,000 was paid to the vendor by the Company. As
at 31 December 2009, capital commitment arising from the
acquisition of the China International Group was approximately
HK$1,350,000,000.

As mentioned in note 21 to the financial statements, on 5
November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement with the
vendor, Maycrown Capital to acquire the entire equity interests
in the Sunlight Group for a consideration of HK$350,860,000.
The Sunlight Group is engaged in the business of generating
and supplying electricity and heat by using coke oven gas in
the PRC. As at 31 December 2009, the refundable deposits
of HK$35,000,000 was paid to the vendor by the Company.
As at 31 December 2009, capital commitment arising from
the acquisition of the Sunlight Group was approximately
HK$315,860,000.
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39.

S

RZEZNAF+_A=1+—H &K&£H
ERERN L MR RFERZESZ R
HHLZ 0@ - R_EThF+ A
=+—H #FEEH£5 51,048,000
7T (ZZZ /\4F : 1,950,000 7T ) ©

MBS SRR M FE21 P REFE K =
EZNFNA -+ HBEF FHGreater
Finances] iZ — 0 1 &% - AUZEE China
International GroupZ 2 B B% AN ## 25 »
China International GroupZ Y88 X &
%1,500,000,000/% 7t (7] T %) o
China International Group £ E#& &R
EHERREB - R_ZTZNF+=
F=+—HB ARACEMEH XA
RIE $150,000,0008 L - R _TZF
hE+—_A=+—8 AKEChina
International Groupif & 4 2 & AN AEH
#41,350,000,0007% JT. °

MR EM 21Tl AEBER T
NF+—RRABEEFRERETL—H
W N EHTEE 2R A
(B 75350,860,00078 7T  HEF =@ HA A
REFAEEAREERERER - R
EENF+_A=+—H RRRERE
75 3+ AT IR #8 3% £35,000,00078 7T ° A —
ETZNF+_A=+—8 FAKREHITE
MEE 2 & ARE¥EL A315,860,0007
TE o
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40.

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the balances and transactions with related parties
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with its related parties during the
year:

Compensation of key management
personnel

Included in staff costs are key management personnel
compensation (including directors’ emoluments) and comprises
the following categories:

40.

BEEALRZS
BRUBREMEE SR RAMEALY

550 4 79 A SR B BE A L 4 2
TS

TEEBABZHE

TBREBABZHEB(BREEME)D
FFABTIARA  BHEATER:

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$'000

—2EhF —TINE

FHT FET

Short-term employee benefits mEEEEF 2,930 9,629
Contribution to retirement benefit RAKIEFIFTH &) 2 R

scheme 52 66

2,982 9,695

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group does not have written financial risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors meets
periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to manage
the Group’s exposure to credit risk, market risk (including
interest rate risk and foreign currency risk) and liquidity risk.
Generally, the Group employs conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group’s exposure to market risk is kept at a
minimum level. The Group has not used any derivatives or other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit
to customers in the ordinary course of its operations and
its investing activities.

41.

B E kR EE

AER B M I FT B B S R e B IR R I
Bol-AM EEEEEHBETER 9
R BT R E R AR BAAE 2 EER
@ iz AR (BN X R RINE R )
ERBEERB - —KRME AKESH
HEREERN-ERZ 2R KW
AEBAEZ TS RAREREREKF-
AEEY EEREATETASEMBTE
ETER - AREBE W EFEFRBETITES
BMTANERESERE-

(a) EERAB

FERBRESRIAZHFITREE
BETERESRMIAGKGRZEEM
SIBAKBERZGBIRRZER
AEBZEERBREIERANER
BEBEERARTRTEPZEER
NERE X -

RERIBEBRERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to its financial assets. The carrying amounts
of these financial assets presented in the statement of
financial position are net of impairment losses, if any.
The Group minimises its exposure to the credit risk
by rigorously selecting the counterparties,
ongoing credit evaluation on the financial conditions
of its debtors and tightly monitoring the ageing of
the receivables. Follow-up actions are taken in case
of overdue balances on a ongoing basis. In addition,
management monitors and reviews the recoverable

performing

amount of the receivables individually or collectively at
each reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, is also
limited because almost all the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are deposited with major banks located in

Hong Kong.

As the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy counterparties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group's exposure to credit risk
to a desirable level.
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41.

BREMER &)

(a)

EERB &)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZTTNF+_A=+T—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The sales and purchases of the Group are predominantly
in USD, RMB and HK$. Exposures to currency exchange
rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash and bank
balances, other receivables and other payables which
are denominated in USD and RMB respectively. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews
its foreign currency exposures regularly and does not
consider its foreign exchange risk to be significant.

The following table details the Group’s exposure
(including assets held for sale) at the reporting date
to foreign currency risk from the above stated items
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of relevant group companies.

41. MHEMERE (&)

(b)

S [ B

AEBZEERGEIRUET A
RERABITIE - IMERBRRE AR
KEDFINETRAREIIEZSE
TRERBITHERT  EMEWHIEA
Ko B Al & AN 5RO » AR S B30 R {8
PTAESE T RS EIMNE R - A
SEE A EIMNERR  WRB A
HOMER BRI TEAX -

TRFFNRE AAARER FaiiE
B (RERELEEE)KEHEE
BIQF 2 NEE G AN BEETIE
7 N [ g

Group
rEE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEAF —ET)\F
FHERT FAT
Cash and cash equivalents RAREIBEZRE R
denominated in RMB ReEEER _ 6
Other receivables denominated ARG 2 Hith B Y RIE
in RMB - 50
Other payables denominated R AREEDIE 2 H MR 5RI8
in RMB = 6,774

Apart from the above, all the Group's financial assets
and liabilities are denominated in HK$.

By assessing foreign currency risk on other receivables
and payables, the effect arising from a reasonably
possible change in the exchange rates of HK$ against
USD and RMB in the next twelve months was not
material to the loss for the year and accumulated losses
at each of the reporting date, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.

BRIA EPratiE SN REE 2 B A M
BEREERRERBANETINE

ﬁ(« Q=T fﬁﬁ'ﬁiﬂlfg”&/)\lgﬁﬁg1# IEZ
HNFE BB IfE"“FﬁﬁEﬁﬁ '''''' if%
&AEMZETT%GEH@EE

FEHFAZEBEBRRSHRERH
Z BB RITEKX
RERRERERAT » —TTNFFf

157



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 SR & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

41.

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) ~ 41. B EKBEE (@)
Interest rate risk () F=EmEb
As the Group has no significant variable interest-bearing HRAEETRERNZERMBEE
financial liabilities, the Group’s income and operating B AEBEZWAREERSRE
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in RAZMGEHNESGEGH B -EF
market interest rate. The directors consider the Group's RE AEBEBZZERITHEFTRE
exposures to cash flow interest rate risk on the bank 8 U FRIE T R 2 3R R R @ b
balances and other receivables with variable interest N
bearing, as follows:
Sensitivity analysis B E ST
The Group is exposed to changes in market interest NEBE 2 RITIRE M EM EFIR
rates through its cash at banks and other receivables, LA R M) 2R 58 - T B 5
which are subject to variable interest rates. KEEH R
The following table indicates the approximate change TRINEAEE 2 BRATSHEERE
in the Group's loss after income tax and accumulated REAEFEEANESERE
losses in response to reasonably possible changes in (K’ilﬂﬂi&iﬁﬁﬂf’ﬁﬁijﬂﬁ
the interest rate, to which the Group has significant B)MEE MO E
exposure at the reporting date.
2009 2008
ZEERF —EENF
Effect on loss Effect on loss
Increase/ after income Increase/ after income
(decrease) tax and (decrease) tax and
in interest accumulated in interest accumulated
rate losses rate losses
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HIREHE HERAEHZ
BE R EER
AN&EFR/ By A= LA/ 2 EE
(FE) Z% (FB8) 2B
TERT FHET
Cash at banks RITRE 0.1% 94 1% -
Cash at banks RITIRE (0.1%) (94) (1%) =
Other receivables Hfth JiE o TR IE 1% - 1% 244
Other receivables H & o R IE (1%) - (1%) (244)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rate had occurred
at the reporting date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 0.1%
increase/decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZThF+-_A=+—HILFE

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

(e)

Fair values

The fair values of the Group’s current financial assets
and liabilities are not materially different from their
carrying amount because of the immediate or short-
term maturity. The fair values of non-current liabilities
were not disclosed because their carrying value is not
materially different from their fair value.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of its financial obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.

The Group maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents assessed as adequate by management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies
on internally generated funding and borrowings as
significant sources of liquidity.

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities as at the reporting dates, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

41. MHEMERE (&)

(d)

(e)

AFE

AEBZRBMHEERAB LR
FTEEEREEYESAZR &
AzEMBEERABBARE
R EHARE - R IERB A
EZEHMEREAFELESR
ZR WUBREZZRBZAF
Ao

REBEEER

MEBECAREREETEEETH
HEKEERMcEE 2 RER &
SEmHZRBECRAREFER
MBAaEAREREREERS
o

AEBEFEREERARTRZRS
MBREEHEEE  AAXEEEB
RERPESRRERSREND
2B - REBUANBELEED R
BERIERRDETCERRR -

AR RARFREE QM EITR
FIERH#E B2 B R &R
BRmT

2009
—EEAF

Within 6 to
Group rEE 6 months 12 months 1to 5 years
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
~EA A RNET=@EA —ZHF
FHERT FHERT FET

Other payables and H & SR8 & FE AT FRIE

accruals 22,559 - -
Convertible bonds A[ AR B - - 29,295
22,559 - 29,295

RERIBEBRERAE ¢ —ZZNFFR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 SR & M =

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZTNF+_A=1+—HBILFE

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

41. BHERAKRERE &)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) REBELRAMR (&)
2008
—EENF
Group REE Within 6 to
6 months 12 months 1to 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEALK  AET-@A —EHE
FHT FHT FHT
Other payables and HAb B RIB R
accruals FEETIE 8,755 - -
Finance lease payables e R E B 48 49 33
Convertible bonds MR ES - - 370,389
8,803 49 370,422
2009
—EBhAF
Company F: NN Within 6 to
6 months 12 months 1to 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
~MEA LA NE+=@EA —ERF
FHERT FHERT FHERT
Other payables and H A E - 5R18 &
accruals FEETFR 2,567 - -
Convertible bonds AR EH - - 29,295
2,567 - 29,295
2008
—EENF
Company PN/N| Within 6 to
6 months 12 months 1to 5 years
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NEAA NET=@EA —ERF
FHET FHET FHT
Other payables and o FE T 5RIB K&
accruals FEET IR 2,779 = =
Convertible bonds AR & - - 370,389
2,779 - 370,389
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(f)

41. MHEMERE (&)

Summary of financial assets and (f) ROBESTZHBEER
liabilities by category EEHNE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets TEBR_ZZENFR-ZZZNF
and liabilities as recognised as at 31 December 2009 +TZAZ+—BRRIMBEEK
and 2008 are categorised as follows. See notes 3(m) BERAES >V T EHEYBT
and 3(r) for explanations about how the categorisation BB EEETE R Wi
of financial instruments affects their subsequent 3(m) R 3(r) 2 fifFE o
measurement.
Group Company
&R AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EThE ZEENF —EZRE ZETNF
FET FAT TER FEL
Financial assets MEEE
Non-current FRE
Available-for-sale financial MHEENKEE
assets - 12,091 - -
Current TE
Loans and receivables ER R EWHIE
— Cash at banks and in hand —%Eﬂ EFERFERE 113,382 881 112,631 496
— Trade receivables —EWE SRR - 43 = =
— Other receivables — H 4 R MR IR 71 30,338 - =
— Due from subsidiaries — WK B A R FKIE - - 339,340 922,169
113,453 43,353 451,971 922,665
Financial liabilities BEEE
Current TE
Other payables and accruals  E b B 5718 & fE 5T 5718 22,559 8,755 2,567 2,779
Finance lease payables FE B & TH A FRIB - 97 - -
Non-current kR E
Finance lease payables FERT R E A FIA - 33 - -
Convertible bonds AR E A 19,279 192,662 19,279 192,662
41,838 201,547 21,846 195,441
RERBEERERAT e — =1 5F®H 161
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42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 42, EXER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

(a) To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and
benefits for stakeholders;

(b) To support the Group's stability and growth; and

(0) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group. The Group currently does not
adopt any formal dividend policy. Management regards total
equity less convertible bond — equity components as capital, for
capital management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2009 amounted to approximately HK$611,832,000
(2008: HK$463,407,000), which management considers as
optimal having considered the projected capital expenditures
and the forecast strategic investment opportunities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —ZTTNF+_A=+T—HILFE

43.

LITIGATIONS

There are litigations being undertaken against and for the
Group in 2009, details of which are set out as follows:

(a)

Capital contribution to IMFSMI

The Group's subsidiary, namely IMFSMI was established
since 2007 and its capital has not yet been fully
paid up since then. IMFSMI (acting under the legal
representative and the director of IMFSMI, Ms.
Leung Lai Ching Margaret) required its immediate
holding company, namely HKFSMIH to make capital
contribution of HK$30 million into IMFSMI (the “Capital
Contribution”), pursuant to IMFSMI's articles of the
association. In September 2009, IMFSMI acted as
plaintiff and undertook legal action against HKFSMIH
to make the Capital Contribution. In March 2010, the
Company’s PRC counsel replied to the court in Inner
Mongolia that

(i) The plaintiff (i.e. IMFSMI) does not possess the
litigation qualification as the business license of
IMFSMI has already expired on 30 April 2009.

(i) The plaintiff does not have any rights to
undertake the litigation as there are no laws
in the PRC to enable a company to sue its
equity holders who have not made their capital
contribution.

(iii) The certificate of approval for IMFSMI is
now invalid and the 2009 annual statutory
examination in the PRC has not been fulfilled.

(iv) After taking into account the above

considerations, the PRC counsel advised that

the business license of IMFSMI should be firstly
cancelled. As such, the Capital Contribution may
not be necessary.

43.
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43,

LITIGATIONS (cContinued)

(a)

(b)

Capital contribution to IMFSMI
(Continued)

Although the court in Inner Mongolia dismissed the
litigation in April 2010, the plaintiff appealed against
the decision.

As at the date of the approval of the financial
statements, the litigation is still in progress.

Injunction order

Forest Source Mining Industry Holding Company
Limited is a private company incorporated in Hong
Kong and owned by Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret.
This company is not related to the Group. The Group
has requested Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret to change
the name of this company on the basis that similarity
between the name of this company and the Company’s
subsidiaries might cause confusion to the shareholders
and business partners of the Group. On 30 November
2009, HKFSMIH, IMFSMI and QHFSMI successfully
requested the High Court of Hong Kong to issue an
interim injunction order against Forest Source Mining
Industry Holding Company Limited, Ms. Leung Lai
Ching Margaret and other three independent persons
restraining them from carrying on business in Hong
Kong and/or the PRC under the name of “Forest Source
Mining Industry Holding Company Limited” or under
any style or name comprising the words “Forest Source
Mining Industry” in form likely to mislead or deceive
the public. On 31 December 2009, the High Court
of Hong Kong continued the interim injunction order
against Forest Source Mining Industry Holding Company
Limited, Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret and other
two independent persons and discharged the interim
injunction order against other one independent person.
On 30 March 2010, upon Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret
on oath saying that she was not intending to compete
with HKFSMIH at the moment or to pass herself/Forest
Source Mining Industry Holding Company Limited off as
HKFSMIH, the High Court of Hong Kong discharged the
interim injunction order against Forest Source Mining
Industry Holding Company Limited, Ms. Leung Lai Ching
Margaret and other two independent persons.
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